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To the Honorable Mayor and WMembers: of City:Council
City of Menasha, Wiscorisin

We have compieted our. audit-of the basic financial statements of the Cily of Menasha (the “City") for the year
ended December 31, 2008. The City's financial statements; including our report thereon dated September 30,
2009, are présented in-a separate audit report document. Professional standards require that we provide you with
the fallowmg information related te.our audit.

Qur Responsibilities Under-U.S. Generall
State Single Audit Guidelines

- Accepted Auditing Standards. OMB Circular A=133 and the

As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to plan and
perform our audit to obtain reasonable; bul not absolule, assurance that the financial statements are free of
material misstatement and are fairly. presented In accordance with-acgounting principles. génerally accepted in the
United States of America. Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, butl not absolute, assurance and
because we did not-perform:a-detailed examination of all ransactions, there is a risk that material errors, fraud,
noncompliance with the provnsnons of laws, regulations, contracts and grants-or other illegal acts may exist and
not be detected by-us.

ln planring and- performing our: audil,'we considered the City's internal control.over financial reporting in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing-our-opinions on the financial statements and not
fo-provide assurance on the infemal control over financial reporting: We .also considered internal conirol over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on major federal and stale programs in
order 16 determine oue auditing precedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on.compliance and to test
and report.on internal control over compliance in accordante with OMB Circular A- 133 and the State Single Audit
Guidslines.

As parl ‘of oblaining reasonable assurance abeul whether the Citys financial staterments are fres of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its. compliance with-certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracls, and
grants,  noncompliance with which: could ‘have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amouints, However, providing-an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit. Also in accordance with OMB Circuitar-A-133 and the: State-Single Audit Guidelines, we examined, on a
test basis, evidence about the City's mmphance with the types. of compliance requirements described in the "U.S.
Office of Management and:Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Gomphance ‘Supplement” -and the: State Single: Audit
Guidelines applicable to eachof its major federal and state:programs for the puepose of expressing an opinion on
the City's compliance with those : requirements. ‘While our audit prowdes a reasonable basis for our opinion, it
does notprovide a legal determination on the Cily's compliance with those requirements.

Planned Scope and Timing-of the Audit

We perfarmed the audit according fo the planned scope and timing prewously commiunicated to you in our
correspondence aboul planning matfers,
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Significant Audit Findings

Consideration of Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2008, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and would
not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider
to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or a combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
entity's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal
control. We consider the following deficiencies to be significant deficiencies in internal control:

Finding 2008-01  Year End Closing and Financial Reporting
Finding 2008-02  Assistance with Capital Assets Records
Finding 2008-03  Financial Reporting for Federal and State Financial Assistance

The complete report on internal control, including a detailed explanation of the finding is included in the Annual
Financial Report.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and
their application. The significant accounting policies used by the City are described in Note A to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during 2008. We noted no significant transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in
the financial statements in a different pericd than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.

We are not aware of any particularly sensitive accounting estimates used by management in the preparation of
the financial statements.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The financial
statements reflect all accounting adjustments proposed during our audit. The adjustments included various end-
of year payable, receivable and reclassification entries. These entries are considered routine in nature and
normally do not vary significantly from year fo year. Copies of the audit adjustments are available from
management.



Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to
the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated September 30, 2009.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion® on certain situations. If a consuitation involves application of an
accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determinatlon of the type of auditor's opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us
to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations
with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to conducting the audit. These discussions occurred in the normal
course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to completing the services as your
auditor.

In addition, during our audit, we noted certain other matters that are presented for your consideration. We will
review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. Our comments and recommendations
are intended to improve the internal control or result in other operating efficiencies. We will be pleased to discuss
these matters in further detail at your convenience, perform any additional study of these matters, or assist you in
implementing the recommendations. Our comments are summarized in the memorandum attached to this letter.,

This communication, which does not affect our report dated September 30, 2009 on the financial statements of
the City, is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, and others within the
City, and i$ not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sincerely,

o ==

Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
September 30, 2009



GENERAL CITY
FINANCIAL COMMENTS
1. City Fund Balances
Presented below is a summary of the City's governmental fund balances on December 31, 2008 including a

comparison to the prior year. This information is provided to assist management in assessing financial results
for 2008 and for indicating financial resources available at the start of the 2009 budget year.
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General Fund
Reserved for noncurrent assets $ 136476 $ 420,283
Unreserved
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 171,722 169,905
Designated for subsequent years' budget 400,000 1,450,000
Undesignated 1,915,864 1,880,680
Total Fund Balance 2,624,062 3,820,868
Special Revenue Funds
Housing rehabilitation revolving loans 13,156 28,636
Community development block grant 84,931 14,799
Marina operations 48,902 29,755
TIF District No. 1 115,866 115,866
TIF District No. 2 4 2
TIF District No. 3 412645 367,252
Park development 85,458 82,658
Law enforcement grant - 9,755
Recycling 325,427 141,970
Post employment sick leave reserve 517,745 567,511
Library endowment 116,560 153,881
Hattie Minor Scholarship 46,785 48,471
Public safety donations (1,243) 3,018
Heckrodt Nature Center 16,138 13,089
Senior Center memorials- 4,188 2,885
Senior Center fund raising 4,521 3,449
Total Special Revenue Funds 1,791,083 1,582,997
Debt Service Fund
Reserved 2,418,733 3,672,629
Unreserved - designated form subsequent year's budget 1,000,000 -
Total Fund Balance 3,418,733 3,672,629
-Capital Projects Funds
2002 Capital projects 655 655
2005 Capital projects - 45,853
2006 Capital projects - 15,287
2008 Capital projects 294,807 -
Capital facilities 260,656 254,242
Capital imporovements 10,396 10,396
Tax Incremental District No. 4 {32,125) (33,343)
Tax Incremental District No. 5 : 301,400 453,741
Tax Incremental District No. 6 (114,621) (32,294)
Tax Incremental District No. 7 (102,767) (166,816)
Tax Incremental District No. 8 (19,849) (13,911)
Tax Incremental District No. 9 61,292 289,860
Tax Incremental District No. 10 12,567 (25,352)
Tax Incremental District No. 11 (30,175) -
Roadways at River's Edge _68,183 68,183
Total Capital Projects Funds 710,419 866,501
Total Governmental Fund Balances _$_ 8544297 $ 10,042,985
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City Fund Balances (Continued)

The City’s general fund decreased $1,296,806 during the year resulting from the anticipated fund balance
applied in the 2008 budget. The City's undesignated fund balance currently is $1 915,864 or 11.5% of the
City’s 2009 general fund expenditure budget.

City's Debt Position

At December 31, 2008, the City has oulstanding general obligation debt totaling $47,032,296. Annual principal

and interest maturities of the outstanding general obligation debt on December 31, 2008 are allocated as
follows:

Year Ended General City Menasha Utilities Total G.O. Debt
December 31 Principal | Interest Principal | Interest Principal | Interest
2009 $ 2532298 $§ 2209997 $ - $ 919,180 § 2,532,296 $ 3,120,177
2010 3,375,000 2,032,529 13,930,000 919,180 17.305,000 2,951,709
2011 2,545,000 1,673,128 2,675,000 139,100 5,220,000 1,812,228
2012 3,015,000 1,676,913 - - 3,015,000 1,676,913
2013 7.535.000 1,479,678 - - 7.535,000 1,479,678
2014-2018 10,845,000 1,806,240 - - 10,945,000 1,806,240
2019-2021 480,000 87.980 - 480,000 87.980

3 30427206 $ 10966465 § 16,605 000 $ 1977460 $ 47,032296 $ 12,943,925

In addition, the City has issued bond and note anticipation notes totaling $345,000 to finance costs associated
with other City projects. The City expects to refinance this debt into general obligation debt upon maturity.
Therefore, at December 31, 2008, the total outstanding debt relating to general City operations totals
$47,377,296. The City's tax incremental financing districts are responsible for outstanding debt of
$17,507,296 and these debt payments will be recovered from future tax increments generated.

Legal Margin for New Debt

The City's legal margin for creation of additional general obligation debt on December 31, 2008 was
$7,380,282 as follows:

Equalized valuation of the City : $1,039,202,400
Statutory limitation percentage (x) 5%
General obligation debt limitation, per Section 67.03 of the

Wisconsin Statutes 51,860,120

Total outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation  $ 47,032,286
Less: Amounts available for financing general obligation debt

Debt service fund 2,452,458
Net outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation 44,579,838
Legal Margin for New Debt $ 7380282



3. Tax Incremel;tal Districts

The City has created and recorded financial activity in ten tax incremental districts as of December 31, 2008.
All project expenditures for TID No. 1, 2 and 3 have been completed; accordingly, financial transactions of the
districts are recorded in special revenue funds. The remaining districts are still eligible to incur project
expenditures and are therefore recorded in capital projects funds. A summary of the net unreimbursed
project costs and outstanding long-term debt as of December 31, 2008 is presented below:

Net Outstanding
Unreimbursed| Long-term
Project Costs Debt

Tax Incremental District No. 1 $ 812746 $ -
Tax Incremental District No. 2 ‘ 50,827 -
Tax Incremental District No. 3 404 1,190,000
Tax Incremental District No. 4 1,086,192 1,165,000
Tax Incremental District No. 5 ‘ 3,690,794 4,052,296
Tax Incremental District No. 6 3,414,574 3,325,000
Tax Incremental District No. 7 1,841,437 1,760,000
Tax Incremental District No. 8 980,459 975,000
Tax Incremental District No. 9 4,541,472 4,665,000
Tax Incremental District No. 10 362,432 375,000
Tax Incremental District No. 11 30,175

—_— ey
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4. City Garage

Presented below is a summary of revenues, expenses and changes in retained eamnings for the City garage
internal service fund for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. :

(2008 | 2007 _j

Operating Revenues

Charges for services $ 1407694 $ 1,300,559
Operating Expenses '

Operation and maintenance 913,603 792,166

Depreciation 221,734 283,283

Total Operating Expenses 1,135,337 1,075,449
Operating Income 272,357 225110
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Iinterest revenue 6,836 13,453

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 5,580 2,878

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 12,416 16,331
Capital Contributions - 130,730
Changes in Net Assets 284,773 372,171
Net Assets - January 1 2,475.203 2,103,032
Net Assets - December 31 2,759,976 2,475203

The City has used cash generated from operations to finance annual capital asset purchases. During 2008,
capital assets of $307,438 were acquired by the City.



Property and Liability Insurance

During 1987, the City, together with certain other units of government within the State of Wisconsin, created
the Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) to provide liability insurance services to its
members. The City provided its share of the original financing for CVMIC by the issuance of general
obligation bonds totaling $1,031,220 on November 1, 1987. The 1987 bonds were fully retired in 2007.

The City has established a separate intemal service fund to account for the aperations of the property and
liability insurance fund. The fund pays all liability claims owed by the City along with any premiums charged
to the City by CVMIC. Revenues of the fund consist of charges to City depariments covered by the
insurance. A summary of the 2008 transactions, with a comparison to 2007, for the property and liability self-
insurance fund follows:

2008 ] 2007 |

Operating Revenues

Charges for services $ 96,825 § 96,825
Operating Expenses '

Insurance payments and claims 141,765 30,229
Operating Income (Loss) (44,940) 66,596
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest and fiscal charges - (4,847)

Dividends from CVMIC - 69,837

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) - 64,990
Changes in Net Assets ' (44,940) 131,586
Net Assets (Deficit) - January 1 1,086,716 955,130
Net Assets (Deficit) - December 31 g 1!041!776 g 1!086!716

The liability self-insurance fund generated an operating loss of $44,940 for 2008, compared to an operating
income of $66,596 for the prior year.



Dental Insurance

During 1997, the City became self-funded for dental insurance. An internal service fund was established to
accumulate resources through department charges to pay dental claims of City employees, retirees and

employee dependents and administrative fees. A summary of 2008 transactions with a comparison to 2007 is
presented below:

| 2008 | 2007 |
Operating Revenues
"~ Charges for services $ 108792 % 109,538
Operating Expenses
Dental insurance claims 105,676 106,694
Administrative fees 7,259 7,332
Total Operating Expenses 112,935 114,026
Changes in Net Assets (4,143) (4,488)
Net Assets - January 1 ~_(2,809) 1,679
Net Assels - December 31 $ (6,952) $ {2,809)

On December 31, 2008, the dental insurance internal service fund reported a claim liability of $4,023 based
on the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10.
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CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS AND OBSERVATIONS

Processing of Journal Entries

During our audit, we noted instances where journal entries did not provide an adequate explanation for the
purpose of the entry or contain other supporting documentation. We also noted that journal entries were not
reviewed and approved by someone other than the individual preparing the entry. While all journal entries
reviewed during our audit were appropriate, we believe supporting documentation and, if practical, evidence
of review should accompany all journal entries entered into the City's general ledger.

We therefore recommend that the City develop a policy for processing journal entries that includes 1)
adequate explanation and documentation and, 2) if practical, the review of all journal entries prior to the
entering into the City’s general ledger. '

Management's Response: City Finance Department Management will take steps necessary to provide full
documentation and review of all monthly and year end closing journal entries.

City Garage Receipting

During our review of the City Garage receipting procedures, we noted that receipts are not issued when sales
are made at the City Garage.

We consider this a weakness in the City’s internal controls over the cash receipting process because there is
no documentation to support the amount of collections the City Garage has received and subsequently the
amount deposited with the City Treasurer. '

We therefore recommend that the City implement a policy to begin issuing receipts fdr cash collections at the
City Garage and reconcile the receipts to the deposit with the City Treasurer.

Management's Response: City Finance Department Management will investigate the cost and feasibility of
providing the computer equipment necessary to allow for electronic receipting and cash accounting at the City
Garage.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City-of Menasha, Wisconsin

We have audited the -accompanying financial state ents: of the gevemmentaE activities; the business-lype '

_acl_iyities each ma d, and the aggregate rem fund information of the : Ciiy of ‘Menasha, Wisconsin
, of arid for the. year-ended December 31, 2008, which collectively comprise the City's: basic financial
statements as listad in the table of conlents. These financial statements are. the: responsibility of the City of

Menasha, Wisconsin's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions:on-these basic financial statements
based on our-audil,

‘We conducted our-audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards appuca le to financial audits contained: in Government Auditing: Standards, issued by the
Cemptml!er General of the ”mted Stales. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit ta obtaln

HSS tatement An audd

reasonabie basis for our opmmns

In-our ‘opinion, the financial statements referred {o above present fairdy, in 2l materlal respects, the respective
financial position of the:governmental activities, the:

remaining fund infarmation of the City'as of Dscember' 31, 2008, and the respeclive changes in financial posttion:

and cash flows, where apptmbte thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the.

year then ended in canformity with accountmg principles generally-accepled In the United States of America.

uertain pravismns ofslaws' regulatlens. confracts. gra. xagraements and o%her malters U
is to describe the. scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

that testing, _and not to_provide an opinion on the internal control over financial report ng énd compftahce That;

report is.an integral part of an-audit: performed in accordance with Government Aucf:?mg Standards and shouid be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The managemenl's discussion :and analysis is: nol & required part the basic fi inancial - statements but is
supplemental lnformatlon required by the Gavernmental Accounting Standards Board. "We have appfied certain,
fimited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of

measurement and presentahun of the supplemental information. However, we did not audit the information and.
express.no opinion-on it.

3200 Rugside Drive » 80 Hox 23810 « Grosn Bay, W1 543053819 ~ schérgianiions.com
Bhone: 920436 1800 - 800-676-0829 - fax, 920 4367808

.siness-iype activities, each-major fund, and the aggregate:
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City's basic financial statements. The financial information listed in the table of contents as supplemental
information, and the accompanying schedule of federal awards and schedule of state financial assistance, as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Guidelines issued by the Wisconsin Department of
Administration, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic

financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

AL

Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
September 30, 2009



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



City of Menasha, Wisconsin
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Menasha, Wisconsin, we offer readers of the City's basic financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008.

Financlal Highlights

s The City's assets exceeded its liabilities as of December 31, 2008 by $60.6 million (net assets). Of this
ar:glet& $10.6 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens
a itors.

o The City’s total net assets increased by $3.5 million {(decrease of $0.2 million in governmental activities and
an increase of $3.7 million in business-type activities).

o Property taxes levied to finance general City operations totaled $9,855,513, an increase of $80,388 from the
prior year. Tax increments generated by the City’s ten tax incremental districts totaled $1,338,748.

o As of December 31, 2008, the City’s govemmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $8.5
million, a decrease of $1.5 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 70% of this total amount,
$6.0 million is available for spending at the City’s discretion (unreserved fund balance).

s As of December 31, 2008, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $2.5 million, or approximately
15% of total general fund expenditures. The general fund balance decreased $1,286,806 during 2008;
however, the City had anticipated a $1,619,905 reduction in its adopted budget for 2008. The City had a
positive expenditure budget variance of $141,733 for the current year.

Ovarview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The
City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themseives.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assefs. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most
recent year. All changes in net assets are reported as scon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., eamed but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-lype activities). The
governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public works, health and human
services, culture and recreation, and conservation and development. The business-type activities of the City
include Menasha Utilities {provides electric, water, steam and telecommunication services to City residents), the

sewage treatment services. ‘ ’

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 10 - 12 of this report.



Fund financlal statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific aclivities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal

requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary
funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-ferm inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources avallable at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements.

It is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the City’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains 36 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
. fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the general fund and debt service fund both of which are considered to be major funds. Data from
the other 34 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for
each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. As part of the basic governmental
fund financial stalements, budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the general fund to
demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmental fund financlal statements can be fqund on pages 13 - 17 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City uses enterprise funds to account for its electric, water, steam and telecommunications utilities (Menasha
Utilities) and its sewerage system operations (reclassified from a special revenue fund in 2003). Internal service
funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various
functions. The City uses an internal service funds to account liability and dental insurance claims and the City’s
garage. Because these services predominantly benefits govemnmental rather than business-type functions, they
have been included within governmental activitlas in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detall. The proprietary fund financlal statements provide separate information for the Menasha Utilities which is
considered to be a major fund of the City and the sewage reatment operations. The City's internal service funds
are combined Into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements én be found on pages 18 - 20 of this report.

Fiduciary fund. The City accounts for tax collections of other taxing entities within an agency fund. The fiduciary
fund financial statements can be found on page 21 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic
financial statements can be found on pages 22 - 46 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental
funds are presented immediately following notes to the basic financial statements.



Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net assets. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $60.6 million at the close of 2008.

City of Menasha, Wisconsin's Net Assets
{in thousands of dollars)
Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Tolals
2008 | 2007 2008 | 2007 2008 | 2007
Current and other assets $ 29838 $ 30791 $ 20578 $ 17,945 $ 50416 $ 48,736
Capital assets 42,589 42,496 82,190 81,2564 124,779 123,750
Total Assets 72,427 73,287 102,768 99,199 175,195 172,486
Long-term liabilities outstanding 32,857 33,888 63,255 62,106 95,812 95,994
Other liabilities 11,857 11,220 6.879 8,131 18,736 19,351
Total Liabilities 44,414 45,108 70,134 70,237 114,548 115,345
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 19,434 19,381 19,714 20,118 39,148 39,499
Restricted 2,674 3,736 7,235 4,388 9,909 8.124
Unrestricted 5,905 5,062 5,685 4,456 11,590 9.518
Total Net Assets $ 28013 $§ 28179 $ 32634 $§ 28962 $ 60647 $ 57,141

By far the largest portion of the City’s net assets reflects ils investment in capital assels (e.g. land, buildings,
machinery and equipment, infrastructure, elc.) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although, the City’s investment in its capital assels is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net assets represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used and conslist of $7.1 million restricted for debt service, $1.2 million restricted for community
development loans, and $1.6 million restricted for capital projects. The remaining balance of unrestricted net
assets ($11,590,151) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to cilizens and creditors.



Change in net assets. A summary of the City's change in net assets follows:

City of Menasha, Wisconsin's Change In Net Assats

{In thousands of dollars)

Govemnmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2008 | 2007 2008 | 2007 2008 | 2007

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for sarvices $ 1856 $ 3373 § 60381 $ 55073 § 62237 $ 58446

Operating grants and contributions 1,821 2,009 - - 1.821 2,009

Captial grants and contributions 200 391 169 702 369 1,093
General Revenues

Property taxes 9,855 9,775 - - 9,855 9,775

Other taxes 197 214 - - 197 214

Grants and contributions not

restricted to specific programs 4,574 5,340 - - 4574 5,340

Other 904 2,194 2,620 1,159 3,524 3,353
Total Revenues 19,407 23,206 63,170 56,934 82,577 80,230
Expenses

General govemment 1,790 1,769 - - 1,790 1,769

Public safety 7,193 6,984 - - 7,193 6,984

Public works and sanitation 4,636 5,983 - - 4,636 5,983

Health and human services 850 771 - - 850 m

Culture and recreation 3,402 3,291 - - 3,402 3.291

Conservation and development 397 990 - - 397 990

Interest on long-term debt 2,402 2,033 - - 2402 2,033

Electric - - 39,611 36,792 39,611 36,792

Steam - - 13,628 13,748 13,628 13,748

Water - - 3,446 3,047 3,446 3,047

Telecommunications - - 87 83 87 83

Sewage treatment - - 1,629 1,404 1.629 1,404
Total Expenses 20,670 21,821 58,401 55,074 79,071 76,895
Change in Net Assets Before Transfers {1.263) 1,475 4,769 1,860 3,506 3,335
Transfers 1,097 978 {1,097) {978) - -
Change in Net Assets (166) 2,453 3,672 882 3,506 3,335
Net Asssets - January 1 28,179 25,726 28,962 28,080 57,141 53,806

Net Assets - December 31 $

28,013 § 28,179 § 32634 $ 28962 $

60,647 $ 57,141

The narrative that follows considers the operations of governmental and business-type activities separately.

Governmental activities. The change in net assets for 2008 was a decrease of $0.2 million. The above transfer
represents the payment in lieu of taxes that Menasha Utilities pays to the City.

Business-type activities. Menasha Utllities portion of the increase was $3.7 million, primarily in the electric and
water utilities, while the sewerage system services decrease was $0.1 million. Capital contributions of $0.2
million are primarily from work being completed in the new subdivisions in Calumet County which were financed
by developers and capital paid by the municipality.




Financlal Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City’s net resources
avallable for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of December 31, 2007, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $8.5 million,
a decrease of $1.5 million in comparison with the prior year. $2.6 million of the fund balance is reserved to
indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed for current year
purchases of items that benefit periods beyond the end of the current year. The remaining fund balance of $6.0
million is available for spending at the City’s discretion.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current year, unreserved fund balance
of the general fund was $2,487,586, while total fund balance reached $2,624,062. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
-expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 15.0% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 15.8% of that same amount.

The City’s general fund balance decreased $1,296,806 during the current year as positive expenditure variances
of $141,733 and positive revenue variances of $122,987 were not sufficient to offset the anticipated reduction of
$1,619,805 and a small Other Financing Sources variance of $58,379.

The debt service fund is used to relire long-term debt related to governmental activities and annually levies
sufficient taxes, special assessment collections or anticipated transfers from the City’s tax incremental districts to
retire all obligations as they come due. The debt service fund balance totals $3,418,733, a decrease of $253,896
from the prior year.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the City’s
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Total net assets of Menasha Utilities at the end of the year amounted to $28,694,060 with $16,322,743 invested
in capital assets net of related debt, $5,654,646 restricted for debt retirement, $1,580,480 restricted for plant
replacement and $5,136,191 as unrestricted. The fund experienced an increase in net assets of $3,759,409,

Total net assets of the sewage treatment operation at the end of the year amounted to $3,940,011. Included in
net assets is $3,390,989 invested in capital assets and $549,022 as unrestricted. The fund experienced a
decrease in net assets of $87,651.

General Fund Budgeta ighlights

During the year, actual revenues were greater than budgeted revenues by $122,987 with no one revenue source
providing a major variation. Actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $141,733. '



Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
December 31, 2008 amounts to $124.8 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, land improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles, public domain
infrastructure (highways, sidewalks, parking facilities), and construction in progress. The total increase in the
City’s investment in capital assets for the current year was $1 million or 0.8% over last year.

Major capital assets acquired, constructed or deleted during the year include:

Governmental Activities
¢ Infrastructure additions of $1.1 million related to development.

* Business-Type Activities
e During 2008 the electric utility had developer and customer contributions of $166,266 with a total
contributed plant of $1,694,411. The water utility had developer contributions of $840 during the year
with a total contributed plant of $1,193,606.

City of Menasha, Wisconsin's Capital Assets
{net of accumulated depreciation)
Govemmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2008 | 2007 2008 2007 2008 | 2007
Land $ 8983788 § 8947642 $ 1248205 $ 872,047 $ 10,231,993 $§ 9,819,689
Buildings ' 10,538,215 10,538,215 20,837,644 16,119,431 31,375,859 26,657,646
Improvements other than
buildings - - 43,441,083 42,224,867 43,441,083 42,224,867
|Machinery and equipment 7.421,352 7,032,748 40,663,101 34,561,300 48,084,453 41,594,048
Infrastructure 37,335,318 36,246,282 - - 37,335,318 36,246,282
Construction in progress - 132484 132,484 3,066,351 13,068,793 3,198,835 13,201,277
Other assets - - 393,520 471,657 393,520 471,657
{Less: Accumulated
depreciation {21.821,929)  (20,401,544) (27,459,235)  (26,064,111)  (49,281,164) (46.465,655)|
Total $ 42,580,228 $ 42,495827 $ 82,190,669 $ 81,253,984 $ 124,779897 $ 123.749.81ﬂ




Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $92,096,1186.
Of this amount, $47,032,296 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government while the
remainder of the City's debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds).

City of Menasha, Wisconsin's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Debt, Revenue Bonds and Other Debt
Govemmental Activities Business-type Aclivities Totals
2008 | 2007 2008 2007 2008 | 2007
General Obligation Debt
Bonds $ 6,190000 $ 6485000 $ - $ - $ 6190000 $ 6,485,000
Notes 24,237,296 16,377,702 16,605,000 16,605,000 40,842,298 32,982,702
Total General Obligation 30,427,296 22,862,702 16,605,000 16,605,000 47,032,296 39,467,702
Bond anticipation notes 345,000 5,070,000 - - 345,000 5,070,000
|Note anticipation notes - 4,345,000 - - - 4,345,000
Revenue bonds - - 20,497,137 18,932,019 20,497,137 18,932,019
Revenue bond anticipation
notes - - 24,160,000 24,160,000 24,160,000 24,160,000
Promissory notes - - 61,683 277,047 61,683 277,047
Total $ 30,772,286 $ 32277702 $ 61,323,820 § 59,974,066 $ 92,096,116 § 92,251,768

During the year, the City’s long-term debt decreased $0.2 million due primarily to repayment of governmental
activities debt. _

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt the City may issue to 5% of its total equalized valuation.
The current debt limitation for the City is $51,960,120.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

¢ The economic condition and outlook of the City has remained fairly stable based on a relatively healthy mix of
manufacturing, tourism, service industry and retail activities which support our tax base.

Inflationary trends in our region compare favorably to national indices.
Operation of the Steam Utility as a profitable entity into the future remains a concern.

Al of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2009 year.

Contacting the City's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an interest
in the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for

additional financial information should be addressed to Mr. Thomas Stoffel, Comptroller/Treasurer, 140 Main
Street, Menasha, Wi 54952-3190.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



ASSETS
Cash and invesiments
Receivables
Taxes’
Accounts
Special assessments
Loans
Internal balances
Due from other governments
inventories and prepaid items
Deferred charges
Restricted assets
Cash and investments
Other assets
Interest receivable
Capital assets, nondepreciable
Land
Other assets
Construction in progress
Capital assets, depreciable
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Less: Accumulated depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued and other current liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Due to other govemments
Uneamed revenues
Long-term obligations
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Restricted for
Debt service
Capital projects
Community development loans
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2008

Governmental | Business-{ype
Activities Aclivities Totals
$ 9760310 $§ 1815944 $ 11,576,254
6,062,649 - 6,062,649
1,758,644 4,774,253 6,532,897
5,188,104 - 5,188,104
3,095,247 - 3,095,247
1,937,953 (1,937,953) -
458,599 31,819 490,418
50,568 662,368 712,936
378,312 1,085,387 1,463,699
- 8,173,793 8,173,793
1,147,780 5,869,281 7,017,061
- 102,869 102,869
8,983,788 1,248,205 10,231,993
- 393,520 393,520
132,484 3,066,351 3,198,835
10,538,215 20,837,644 31,375,859
- 43,441,083 43,441,083
7,421,352 40,663,101 48,084,453
37,335,318 - 37,335,318
(21,821,929) (27,459,235) (49,281,164)
72,427,394 102,768,430 175,195.824
689,875 3,692,000 4,381,875
35,907 1,859,405 1,895,312
597.431 104,838 702,269
1,109 - 1,109
10,532,463 1,223,412 11,755,875
2,800,816 25,821,171 28,721,987
29,656,290 37,433,533 67,089,823
44,413,801 70,134,359 114,548,250
19,434,103 19,713,732 39,147,835
1,452,458 5,654,646 7.107,104
- 1,580,480 1,580,480
1,222,004 - 1,222,004
5,904,938 5,685,213 11,590,151
28,013,503 32,634,071 60,647,574

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Program Revenues
Operating | Capital Grants

Charges for | Grants and and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services | Contributions | Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental Aclivities
General government $ 1,790,274 $ 241905 § - 8 -
Public safety 7,193,205 467,399 84,139 : -
Public works 4,636,357 412,771 1,054,821 200,237
Health and human services 849,476 289,073 135,374 -
Culture and recreation 3,401,933 439,390 458,775 -
Conservalion and development 396,830 5,358 88,420 -
Interest on debt 2,402,130 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 20,670,205 1,855,896 1,821,529 200,237
Business-type Activities -
Electric utility 39,610,595 41,173,833 - 166,266
Steam utility 13,628,306 12,811,840 - -
Water utility 3,445,779 4,661,337 - 840
Telecommunication utility 86,900 72,254 - 1,685
Sewerage system 1,628,540 1,661,309 - -
Total Business-type Activities 58,400,120 60,380,573 - 168,791
Total $ 79,070,325 $ 62236469 $ 1821529 $ 369,028

General revenues
Taxes _
Property taxes levied for general purposes
Property taxes levied for debt service
Tax increments
Other taxes
Federal and state grants and other contributions
not restricted to specific functions
Interest and investment eamnings
Miscellaneous
Special item - gain on sale of asset
Transfers
Total general revenues, special item and transfers

Change in net assets
Net assets - January 1

Net assets - December 31

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue

and Changes in Net Assels

Governmental | Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
(1,548,369) $ - $ (1,548,369)
(6,641,667) - (6,641,667)
(2,968,528) - (2,968,528)
(425,029) - (425,029)
(2,503,768) - (2,503,768)
(303,052) - (303,052)
(2,402,130) E (2,402,130)
{16,792,543) - {16,792,543)
- 1,729,504 1,729,504
- (816,466) (816,466)
- 1,216,398 1,216,398
- (12,961) (12,961)
- 32,769 32,769
- 2,149,244 2,149,244
(16,792,543) 2,149,244 (14,643,299)
6,286,132 - 6,286,132
2,230,633 - 2,230,633
1,338,748 - 1,338,748
196,972 - 196,972
4,573,837 - 4,573,837
475,801 1,021,858 1,497,759
154,912 1,697,694 1,752,606
272,931 - 272,931
1,097,138 {1,097,138) =
16,627,104 1,522,514 18,149,618
(165,439). 3,671,758 3,506,319
28,178,942 28,962,313 57,141,255
28,013,503 - 32,634,071 60,647,574
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables
Taxes
Delinquent personal property taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Loans
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
inventories and prepaid items
Other assels
Advance to other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued and other current liabilities
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved for
Inventories and prepaid items
Delinquent personal property taxes
Long-term recelvable
Retirement of long-term debt
Long-term advance
Unreserved
Designated, reported in
General fund
Subsequent year's expenditures
Subsequent year's budget
Special revenue funds
Subsequent year's expenditures
Subsequent year’s budget
Capital projects funds
Subsequent year's expenditures
Undesignated, reported in
General fund
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

(Continued)

CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
- Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
~ December 31, 2008

Other Total
Governmental | Governmental
General Debt Service Funds Funds
$ 7640300 $ - $ 1,837,777 $ 9,478,077
3,907,299 1,064,000 1,037,117 6,008,416
54,233 - - 54,233 .
1,753,844 - 4,800 1,758,644
3,863 5,184,241 - 5,188,104
- ' - 3,095,247 3,095,247
2,569,801 3,229,398 2,071,593 7,870,792
436,833 - 21,766 458,599
50,568 - - 50,568
- = 116,560 116,560
- 966,275 - 966,275
6,416,741 3 10.443914 8,184 35,045,515
$ 652638 $ - $ 1,030 $ 653,668
35,907 - - 35,907
6,167,912 - 870,554 7,038,466
6,936,222 7,025,181 4,811,774 18,773,177
13,792,679 7,025,181 5,683,358 26,501,218
50,568 - - 50,568
54,233 - - 54,233
31,675 - - 31,675
- 1,452,458 - 1,452,458
- 966,275 - 966,275
171,722 - - 171,722
400,000 1,000,000 - 1,400,000
= 5 1,692,326 1,692,326
. = 100,000 100,000
5 - 1,009,956 1,009,956
1,915,864 - - 1,915,864
- - (1,243) (1.243)
. 5 (299,537) {299,537)
2624062 3418733 2,501,502 8,544,007
16,416,741 10,443,914 8,184 860 35,045,515
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Balance Sheset (Continued)
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2008

Reconciliation to the Stagemem of Net Assets

Total Fund Balances as shown on previous page

Amounts reported for goverhmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay current period expenditures and
therefors are deferred in the funds.
Special assessments
Loans receivable

Internal service funds reported in the statement of net assets as governmental
activities (see page 19) .

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.
Bonds and notes payable
Debt premium
Loss on advance refunding
Compensated absences
Deferred charges - bond issues
Accrued interest on long-term obligations

Net Assets of Governmental Activities as Reported on the Statement of Net Assets
(see page 10)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 8,544,297

40,209,917

5,205,467
3,035,247

3,794,800

$(30,772,296)
(164,150)
17,655
(1.638,315)
378,312
(697.431)  (32,776,225)

28,013,503



CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds
Year Ended Dacember 31, 2008

(Continued)
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Other Total
Governmental | Governmental
General Debt Service Funds Funds

Revenues
Taxes $ 6014044 $ 2,230,633 $ 1,807,808 $ 10,052,485
Speclal assessments - 372,132 - 372,132
intergovernmental 5,292,067 - 465,856 5,757,923
Licenses and permits 419,654 - - 419,654
Fines and forfeils 152,852 - - 152,852
Public charges for services 314,088 - 245,525 659,613
Intergovemmental charges for services 1,252,371 - 79,423 1,331,794
Miscellaneous 469,238 123,288 388,186 980,712
Total Revenues 13,914,314 2,726,053 2.986,798 19,627,165

Expenditures
Curment

General government 1,678,323 - 175 1,678,498
Public safety 6,872,201 - 152,414 7,024,615
Public works 3,432,287 - 519,168 3,951,455
Health and human services 803,571 - 12,597 816,168
Culture and recreation 2,957,140 - 231,826 3,188,966
Conservation and development 277,234 - 49,627 326,861
Debt service
Principal - 11,500,406 - 11,500,406
Interest and fiscal charges - 2,119,942 147,855 2,267,797
Capital outlay 581,526 - 881,709 1,463,235
Total Expenditures 16,602,282 13,620,348 1,995,371 32,218,001

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures {2,687,968) (10,894,295) 091,427  (12,590,836)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

" Long-term debt issued - - 9,995,000 9,995,000
Transfers in 1,391,162 10,640,399 30,000 12,061,561
Transfers out - - {10,964,423) (10,864,423)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,391,162 10,640,399 {939,423) 11,092,138

Net Change in Fund Balances {(1.296,806) (253,896) 52,004 (1,498,698)

Fund Balances - January 1 3,920,868 3,672,629 2,449,498 10,042,995

Fund Balances - December 31 2,624,062 3,418,733 2,501,502 8,544,297




CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Reconciiiation to the Statement of Activities
Net Change in Fund Balances from previous page ‘ : $ (1,498,698)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay reported in governmental fund statements $ 1,275,311
Depreciation expense reported in the statement of activilies ' (1,256,192)
Amount by which capital oullays are greater than depreciation in
current period 19,119

In governmental funds the entire proceeds, if any, from the disposal of capital
assets Is reported as an other financing source. In the statement of activities,
only the gain {or loss) on the disposal is reported. {6,790)

Certain employee benefits are reported in the governmental funds when amounts
are pald. The statement of aclivities reports the value of benefits earned during
the year. This year the accrual of these benefits increased by: - (122,280)

Some capital assets acquired and other development expenditures incurred during the .
year were financed with debt. Debt issued Is reported in the governmental funds as an
other financing source. In the statement of net assets, however, debt constitutes a
long-term liability. The amount of debt proceeds reported in the governmental fund
statements is: (9,995,000)

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is reported in the governmental funds as an
expenditure, but is reported as a reduction in long-term debt in the statement of
net assets and does not affect the statement of activities. The amount of long- ‘
term obligation payments in the current year is: 11,500,408

Interest payments on outstanding debt are reported in the governmental funds as an
expenditure when paid; in the statement of aclivilies interest is reported as it accrues. (156,036)

Governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, and discounts when
the debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. The issuance costs paid in excess of the amorlization Is: 21,703

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities. 235,690

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds. (163,553)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities as Reported in the
Statement of Activities (see pages 11 - 12) $ (165439)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual
General Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Variance
_ ’ Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original | Final Amounls (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 6016405 $§ 6,016405 $§ 6,014,044 $ (2,361)
Intergovernmental 5,262,093 5,262,093 5,292,067 29,974
Licenses and permits 379,280 379,280 419,654 40,374
Fines and forfeits 160,000 160,000 152,852 (7.148)
Public charges for services 345,550 345,550 314,088 (31,462)
Intergovernmental charges for services 1,196,894 1,196,894 1,252,371 55477
Miscellaneous 431,105 431,105 469,238 38,133
Total Revenues 13,791,327 13,791,327 13,914,314 122,987
Expenditures
Current
General government 1,717,019 1,717,019 1,678,323 38,696
Public safety 7,043,744 7,043,744 6,872,201 171,543
Public works and sanitation 3,131,198 3,131,198 3,432,287 (301,089)
Health and human services 875,689 875,689 803,571 72,118
Culture and recreation 2,957,861 2,957,861 2,957,140 721
Conservation and development 321,394 321,394 277,234 44,160
Capital outlay 697,110 697,110 581,526 115,684
Total Expenditures 16,744,015 16,744,015 16,602,282 141,733
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (2,952,688) (2,952,688) {2,687,968) 264,720
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 1,332,783 1,332,783 1,391,162 58,379
Net Change in Fund Balance (1,619,905) (1,619,905) (1,296,806) 323,099
Fund Balance - January 1 3,820868 - 3,920,868 3,920,868 -
Fund Balance - December 31 $ 2300963 $ 2300863 $ 2624062 $ 323,099

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business- Governmental
Activities -
Menasha Internal Service
Utilities Treatment Totals Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 299408 $ 1516536 $ 1,815944 $ 282,233
Receivables
Accounts 4,774,253 - 4,774,253 -
Inventories and prepaid expenses 662,368 - 662,368 -
Due from ather funds - - - 786,387
Due from other governments - 31,819 31,819 -
Restricted assets
Cash and investments 8,133,793 40,000 8,173,793 -
Other assets 5,869,281 - 5,869,281 1,031,220
Interest receivable 102,869 - 102,869 -
Deferred charges 1,085,387 - 1,085,387 -
Capital assets, nondepreciable
Land 1,248,205 - 1,248,205 44,216
Other assets 393,520 - 393,520 -
Construction in progress 1,164,531 1,901,820 3,066,351 132,484
Capital assets, depreciable
Buildings 20,837,644 - 20,837,644 928,181
Improvements other than buildings 38,357,805 5,083,178 43,441,083 -
Machinery and equipment 40,663,101 - 40,663,101 5,474,407
Less: Accumulated depreciation (26,745,080) (714,155)  (27,459,235) (4,199,977)
TOTAL ASSETS 96,847,185 7,859,198 104,706,383 4,479,151
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3,635,696 56,304 3,692,000 37,316
Accrued and other current liabilities 1,859,405 - 1,859,405 -
Accrued Interest payable 93,487 11,351 104,838 -
Due to other funds - 971,678 971,678 647,035
Unearned revenue 1,223,412 - 1,223,412 -
Advance from other funds 966,275 - 966,275 -
Long-term obligations :
Due within one year 26,691,094 130,077 25,821,171 -
Due in more than one year 34,683,756 2,749,777 37,433,533 =
TOTAL LIABILITIES 68,153,125 3,919,187 72,072,312 684,351
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 16,322,743 3,390,989 19,713,732 2,379,311
Restricted for
Debt service 5,654,646 - 5,654,646 -
Plant replacement 1,580,480 - 1,580,480 .
Unrestricted 5,136,191 549,022 5685213 1,415,489
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 28694060 $ 3940011 $ 32.634.071 $ 3.794.800

CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN

Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2008

The notes 1o the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Other
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Operation and maintenance
Insurance payments and claims
Depreciation and amortization
Taxes
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income
Merchandising and jobbing
Interest and fiscal charges
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Miscellaneous
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

income Before Contributions and Transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers out

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - January 1
Net Assels - December 31

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2008
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Menasha Sewage Internal Service
Ulilities Treatment Totals Funds

$ 57869571 $§ 1,661,309 $ 59,530,880 $ 1,613,311
849,693 - 849,693 T -
58,719,264 1,661,309 60,380,573 1,613,311
50,480,181 1,525,830 52,006,011 913,603

- - - 254,700
2,940,688 61,462 3,002,150 221,734
313,147 - 313,147 -
53,734,016 1,587,292 55,321,308 1,390,037
4,985,248 74,017 5,059,265 223,274
1,006,278 15,680 1,021,958 6,836
6,106 - 6,106 -
(3,037,564) (41,248) {3,078,812) -

- - - 5,580

1,691,588 - 1,591,588 -
{433,592) (25,568) {459,160) 12,416
4,551,656 48,449 4,600,105 235,690
168,791 - 168,791 -
(961,038) (136,100) {1,097,138) -
3,759,409 (87,651) 3,671,758 235,690
24,934,651 4,027,662 28,962,313 3,559,110
28,694,060 3,940,011 32,634,071 3,794,800

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash recelved from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital and Related Financing Activities

Transfers to general fund

Advances to (from) other govemments

Advances to (from) other funds

Net Cash Used by Noncapilal and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Acquisition of capital assets

Debt proceeds

Principal payments on long-term debt

Advances to (from) other funds

Interest payments on capital debt

Asset disposal costs and salvage

Contributions from property owners

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received on investments
Cash paid to ATCLLC
Cash Provided by Investing Activilles

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Merchandising and jobbing
Miscellaneous
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Inventories and prepaid expenses
Deferred debits
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Deferred credits
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Aclivities
None

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and investments
Restricted and other cash and investments
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

[ EnterpriseFunds | Govemmental
Activities -
Menasha Sewage Internal Service
Utilittes Treatment Totals Funds
$ 60425430 $ 1661309 $ 62,088,739 § 1,613,311
(47,410,961) (1,369,282) (48,780,243) (791,471)
(4,443,779) (100,244 4,544,023) (364,570)
8,570,690 191,783 8,762,473 457,270
(961,038) (136,100) (1,097,138) -
- (14,618) (14,618) -
- 1,365,608 1,365,608 (160,043)

(961,038) 1,214,890 253,852 {160,043)
(2,054,121) {1,830,583) (3,884,704) (307,438)

809,736 2,040,878 2,850,614 -
(1.665,032) (42,740) (1.707,772) -

(70,789) - (70,789) -
(2,863,581) (33,372) (2,896,953) -

13,536 - 13,636 5,580

168,791 - 168,791 -
{5,661,460) 134,183 (5,527,277) (301,858)
1,010,790 15,680 1,026,470 11,468

__(269,236) E (259,236)

751,554 15,680 767,234 11,488
2,699,746 1,556,536 4,256,282 6,837
5,733,455 - 5,733,455 275,398
8,433,201

$ 4985248 $ 74017 $ 5089265 $ 223,274
2,940,688 61,462 3,002,150 221,734
6,106 - 6,106 -
1,591,588 - 1,591,588 -
339,312 - 339,312 -
5,901 - 5,901 -
9,919 - 9,919 -
(532,417) 56,304 (476,113) 12,262
61,132 - - 61,132 -
836,787 - 836,787 -
£___457.270
$ - 3 - & - 3 S
$ 299408 $ 1516536 § 1815944 § 282,233
8133793 40000 8173793 ___ -
S 262233

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Assets
Agency Fund
December 31, 2008

| Agen‘_gzi:und ]
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 6,340,473
Taxes receivable 9,049,669
TOTAL ASSETS ' 15,390,14
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments 15,390,142

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financlal statements of the City of Menasha, Wisconsin (“the City"), have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied
to government unils. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting principles and policies utilized by the City are described below:

1.

Reporting Entity

The City of Menasha is a municipal corporation governed by an elected eight member council. In
accordance with GAAP, the basic financial statements are required to include the City (the primary
government) and any separate component unils that have a significant operational or financial
relationship with the City. The City has not identified any component units that are required to be
included in the basic financial statements in accordance with standards established by GASB Statement
Nos. 14 and 39. :

Joint Venture

The City of Menasha is a participant with six other area municipalities in a joint venture to operate a
wastewater trealment facility. The Neenah-Menasha Sewerage Commission was created for that
purpose. The Commission is governed by a seven-member board composed of appointed members from
the various municipalities. The Commission is designed to be a self-supporting entity, deriving its
revenues from sewage treatment user fees from the various municipalities and industries it serves. The
Commission has not been created for profit, and no part of the net income or profit shall accrue to the
benefit of any private individual or any organization created for profit. Complete financial statements for
the Neenah-Menasha Sewerage Commission can be oblained from the Commission's office at
101 Garfield Avenue, Menasha, Wisconsin 54952.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements. ,

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which are primarily
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and
2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a

particular function. Taxes and other ilems not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

Separate financial stalements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary

' funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental funds include general, special revenue, debt service and capital projects funds.
Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal services funds. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

GENERAL FUND

This is the City’s main operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those accounted for in another fund.

DeBT SERVICE FUND

This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on
long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

MENASHA UTILITIES FUND

This fund is used to account for the operating activities of the Menasha Water, Steam and Electric
operations.

SEWAGE TREATMENT FUND
This fund s used to account for the operating activities of the Menasha Sewage Treatment operations.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

internal service funds account for fleet maintenance and insurance services provided to other
departments of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

The City accounts for property taxes collected on behalf of other governments in an agency fund.

4. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund (other than
agency funds) financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Agency funds follow the
accrual basis of accounting, and do not have a measurement focus.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be avaflable when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues {o be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expendilures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Revenues susceplible to accrual include intergovernmental grants, intergovernmental charges for
services, public charges for services and interest. Other revenues such as licenses and permits, fines
and forfeits and miscellaneous revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurable and
available.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Certain private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent
that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following certain subsequent private-sector
guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City
has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-inieu of taxes and other charges between the
City’s water and electric functions and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1)charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, and fees and fines, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions. Internally dedicated rescurces are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City's enterprise funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricled resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

5. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

a. Cash and Investments
Cash and investments are combined in the financial statements. Cash deposits consist of demand
and time deposits with financial institutions and are carried at cost. Investments are stated at fair
value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. For purposes of the
statement of cash flows, all cash deposits and highly liquid investments (including restricted assets)
with a maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.

b. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at gross amount with uncollectible amounts recognized under the
direct write-off method. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided since it is
believed that the amount of such allowance would not be material to the basic financial statements.

c. Interfund Receivables and Payables
During the course of operations, numerous transactions cccur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other
funds” and “due to other funds” in the fund financial statements. Noncurrent portions of the interfund
receivables for the governmental funds are reported as “"advances to other funds” and are offset by a
reservation of fund balance since they do not constitute expendable available financial resources and
therefore are not available for appropriation.

The amount reported on the statement of net assets for internal balances represents the residual
balance outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d.

e,

f.

Inventories

inventories are recorded at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out method.
Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an
expenditure al the time individual inventory items are consumed rather than when purchased.

Inventories of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by fund balance reserve
amounts to indicate that they do not represent spendable available financial resources.

Prepaid items
Payments made to vendors that will benefit periods beyond the end of the current fiscal year are
recorded as prepaid items. ’

Prepaid items of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by fund balance
reserve amounts to indicate that they do not represent spendable available financial resources.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000
or higher and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the foliowing estimated
useful lives:

Governmental | Business-type
Aclivities Activities
Years

Assels
Buildings 30-40 25-50
Improvements other than buildings - 25-100
Machinery and equipment 3-20 3-10
Infrastructure 10-100 -

Compensated Absences

it is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave
benefits in accordance with bargaining unit agreements. All vacation and sick leave is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these
amounts is reported in the governmental funds in the fund financial statements only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

The Menasha Utilities Enterprise Fund has recorded a liability for accrued employee vacation leave at
December 31, 2008. Employees are not granted a specific number of sick days, rather they may use
as many as needed in each particular instance. Employees are not allowed to accumulate sick leave.
Therefore, no liability for accumulated sick leave is recorded at December 31, 2008.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
h. Deferred Revenue

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period or for resources that have been
received, but not yet recognizable.

i. Long-term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilittes in the applicable
~ governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net assets. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance
cosls are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

jo Eund Equity

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Covernmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations
of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND PROPRIETARY FUND STATEMENTS
Equity is classified as net assels and displayed in three components:

e Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Amount of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, less cutstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that
are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

» Restricted net assets - Amount of net assets that are subject to restrictions that are imposed by
1) external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other
governments or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

o Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are neither classified as restricted nor as invested in
capital assets, net of related debt.

k. Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTEB - SWMDSHIP AND COMPLIANCE

Budagets and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected In the basic financial
statements:

1.

During October, City management submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the
calendar year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them. After submission to the governing body, public
hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. Following the public hearings, the proposed budget,
including authorized additions and deletions, is legally enacted by City Council action.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America for the governmental funds. Budget is defined as the originally approved
budget plus or minus approved amendments. Individual amendments throughout the year were not
material in relation to the original budget. Budget appropriations not expended during the year are
closed to fund balance unless authorized by the governing body to be forwarded into the succeeding
year's budget.

During the year, formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the
governmental funds.

The legal level of budgetary control is by activity or department. Expenditures may not exceed
budgeted appropriations provided in accounts maintained for each activity or department of the City.
Amendments to the budget during the year require initial approval by management and are
subsequently authorized by the City Council. Management does not have authority to amend activity
or department budget accounts.

Encumbrance accounting is not used by the City to record commitments related to unperformed
contracts for goods or services.

The City did not have any material violation of legal or contractual provisions for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2008.

Deficit Fund Equity
The following funds had deficit fund equity as of December 31, 2008:

Deficit Fund

Funds Balance
Special Revenue Fund

Public safety donations 8 1,243
Capital Projects Funds

Tax incremental district #4 ' 32,125

Tax incremental district #6 114,621

Tax incremental district #7 102,767

Tax incremental district #8 19,849

Tax incremental district #11 30,175
Internal Service Fund

Dental insurance ’ 6,952

The City anticipates funding the above deficit from future operations of the funds.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

Cash and Investments

The City maintains various cash and investment accounts, including pooled funds that are available for
use by all funds. Each fund's portion of these accounts is displayed on the financial statements as "Cash
and investments.” '

1.

The City is authorized by Wisconsin Statute 66.0603 to invest in the following instruments:

Time depasits in any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust company or savings and loan association
which is authorized to transact business in this state if the time deposits malure in not more than
three years.

Bonds or securilies issued or guaranteed as to principal and interest by the federal government, or by
a commission, board or other instrumentality of the federal government.

Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village, town or
schoo! district of this state. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition district, local professional
baseball park district, local professional football stadium district, local cultural arts district, or the
University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority.

Any security which matures or which may be tendered for purchase at the option of the holder within
not more than 7 years of the date on which it is acquired, if that security has a rating which is the
highest or second highest raling category assigned by Standard & Poor's Corporation, Moody’s
Investor Service or other similar nationally recognized rating agency or if that security is senior to, or
on a parity with, a security of the same issuer which has such a rating.

The Local Government Pooled Investment Fund.

Repurchase agreements with public depositories, if the agreement is secured by federal bonds or

securities.

Securities of open-end management investment companies or investment trusts (mutual funds) if the
portfolio is limited to (a) bonds and securities issued by the federal government or a commission,
board or other instrumentality of the federal government, (b) bonds that are guaranteed as to principal
and interest by the federal government or a commission, board or other instrumentality of the federal
government, and (c) repurchase agreements that are fully collateralized by these bonds or securities.

In addition to the foregoing, the City may have investments in shares of common stock and mutual funds
held for specific endowment funds. The camrying amount of the City’s cash and investments, including the
separate accounts noted above, totaled $26,090,520 on December 31, 2008 as summarized below:

Petty cash funds $ 3,855

Deposits with financial institutions 20,960,689

investments 5,125,976
526000520
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financlal Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
Reconclliation to the basic financial statements:

Basic financial statements

Cash and investments $ 11,576,254

Restricted cash and investments 8,173,793
Fiduciary fund

Agency fund 6,340,473

$ 26,090,520

Deposits and investments of the City are subject to various risks. Presented below is a discussion of the
specific risks and the City’s policy related to the risk.

Cuslodi isk

Custodial credit risk for deposits. is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. Wisconsin statutes require repurchase agreements fo be fully collateralized by bonds or
securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government or its instrumentalities. The City does not
have an additional custodial credit risk policy.

Depaosits with financial institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) in the
amount of $250,000 per official custodian through December 31, 2013. In addition, the City's non-interest
bearing transaction accounts are fully insured under the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program through
December 31, 2009. On January 1, 2014, the coverage limit for all accounts will return to $400,000 for
interest bearing accounts and $100,000 for non-interest bearing accounts. In addition, the State of
Wisconsin has a State Guarantee Fund which provides a maximum of $400,000 per public depository
above the amount provided by an agency of the U.S. Government. However, due to the relatively small
size of the State Guarantee Fund in relation to the Fund's total coverage, total recovery of insured losses
may not be available.

As of December 31, 2008, $14,583,989 of the City's deposits with financial institutions were in excess of
federal depository insurance limits and uncollateralized.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally. recognized statistical
rating organization. Wisconsin statutes limit invesiments in securities to the top two ratings assigned by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The City does not have an additional credit risk
policy. Presented below is the actual rating as of year end for each investment type.

Exempt
From Not
Investment Type Amount Disclosure AAA Aa Rated

Commercial paper $ 1163317 $ - % 1163317 $ - § -
Common stock 1,644 - - - 1,644
Wisconsin local government

investment pool 3,861,015 - - - 3,961,015
Totals - $ 5125976 $ - $ 1163317 $ & $ 3962659
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments to market interest rate
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investments by

maturity:
Remaining Maturity (in Months
12 Months 131024 25 to 60 More Than
Investment Type Amount or Less Months Months 60 Months
Federal agency securities $ 1163317 $ - 8 - $ 1,163,317 § -
" Wisconsin local government

investment pool 3,961,015 3,961,015 - - -
Totals $ 5124332 $ 3,961,015 § - $ 1163317 § -

Investment in Wisconsin L ocal Government Investment Pool

The City has investments in the Wisconsin local government investment pool of $3,961,015 at year-end.
The Wisconsin local government investment pool (LGIP) is part of the State Invesiment Fund (SIF), and is
managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw
their funds in total on one day’s notice. At December 31, 2008, the fair value of the City’s share of the.
LGIP's assels was substantially equal to the carrying value.

Investments in the Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool are covered under a surety bond issued
by Financial Security Assurance, Inc., which is in effect through February 15, 2009. The bond insures
against losses arising from principal defaults on substantially all types of securities acquired by the pool.
The bond provides unlimited coverage on principal losses, reduced by any FDIC, State of Wisconsin
Guarantee Fund insurance, and income on the investment during the calendar quarter a loss occurs.

2. Property Taxes

Property taxes consist of taxes on real estate and personal property. They are levied during December of
the prior year and become an enforceable lien on property the following January 1. Properly taxes are
payable in various options depending on the type and amount. Personal property taxes are payable on or
before January 31 in full. Real estate taxes are payable in full by January 31 or in four equal installments on
or before January 31, March 31, May 31 and July 31. Real estate taxes not paid by July 31 are purchased
by the County as part of the August tax settlement. Delinquent personal property taxes remain the
collection responsibility of the City.

The City bills and collects its own property taxes and also levies and collects taxes for the Menasha School
District, Appleton Area School District, Winnebago and Calumet Counties, Fox Valley Technical College and
the State of Wisconsin. Collections and remittances of taxes for other entities are accounted for in the
property tax agency fund.
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3. Restricted and Other Assets
Restricted assets on December 31, 2008 totaled $15,293,723 as detailed below:

Governmental Activities

" Capitalization deposil with CVMIC $ 1,031,220
Beneficial interest in library endowment funds
held by the Community Foundation 116,560
Total Governmental Activities ‘ 1,147,780
Business-type Activities
Menasha Utilities
Cash and investments 8,132,149
Other cash and investments 1,644
Investment in ATC LLC © 2,497,506
Generation investment in steam utility 3,371,775
Interest accrued 102,869
Total Menasha Utilities 14,105,943
Sewage System
Equipment replacement ' 40,000
Total Restricted and Other Assets $ 15,293,723

Restricted cash and investments of Menasha Utilities are held for the following purposes:

Debt reserve fund $ 595,418
Bond redemption fund : 3,229,228
Depreciation fund 1,721,422
Transmission reserve fund 435,203
Utility reserve fund 244,480
Steam Ulility reserve fund 1,830,000
Post Employment Health Benefits Fund 76,398
Total Cash and Investments %

Restricted assets of the Electric and Water Ulilities enterprise fund consist of a debt reserve fund, a bond
redemption fund, and a depreciation fund required by the City revenue bond ordinance. The debt reserve
fund requires a balance of the lesser of $840,000 or the highest outstanding principal and interest
requirements on all bond issues. The depreciation fund is required to have $1,000,000 set aside for
additions to and betterments of the system.
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4. Capital Assels

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Govemmaental activities: ‘
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 8947642 $ 36,146 $ - 8,983,788
Construction in progress 132,484 - - 132,484
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 9,080,126 36,146 - 9,116.272
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 10,538,215 - - 10,538,215
Machinery and equipment 7,032,748 457,568 68,964 7,421,352
Infrastructure 36,248,282 1,089,036 - 37,335,318
Subtotals 63,817,245 1,546,604 68,964 55,294,885
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 4,548,064 217,039 - 4,765,103
Machinery and equipment 4,575,111 351,063 57,541 4,868,633
Infrastructure 11,278,369 909,824 - 12,188,193
Subtotals 20,401,544 1,477,926 57,541 21,821,929
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 33,415,701 68,678 11,423 33,472,956
Govemmental activities capital assets, net $ 42495827 $ 104824 $ 11,423 42,589,228
Less: related long-term debt outstanding related to capital assets net of
unamortized premium of $164,150 and loss on advance refunding of ($17.655) 23,155,125
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 19,434,103
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activitles:
Capital assels, not being depreciated: .
Land $ 872,047 $ 376,158 $ - $ 1,248,205
Other assets 471,657 - 78,137 393,520
Construction in progress 13,068,793 1,943,498 11,945,940 3.066.351
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 14,412,497 2,319,656 12,024,077 4,708,076
Capilal assets, being depraciated:
Buildings and improvements 16,119,431 4,896,962 178,749 20,837,844
improvements other than buildings 42,224,867 1,359,130 142914 43,441,083
Machinery and equipment 34,561,300 7,457,530 1,355,729 40,663,101
Subtotals 92,905,598 13,713,622 1,677,392 104,941,828
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Steam utility 8,658,142 1,274,493 91,528 9,841,107
Electric distribution utility 10,604,708 1,435,364 502,079 11,537,993
Energy services utility 64,345 9,265 - 73.610
Telecommunications utility 227,601 38,465 - 266,066
Water utility 5,856,622 578,666 1,408,984 5,026,304
Sewage treatment utility 662,693 61,462 - 714,155
Subtotals 26,064,111 3,397,715 2,002,591 27,459,235
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 66,841,487 10,315,907 (325,199) 77,482,593

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 81253984 § 12635563 $ 11,698,878 82,190,669

Less: related long-term debt outstanding related to capital assets 62,476,937
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $§ 19,713,732
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the City as follows:

Governmental activities

General government $ 48,558
Public safety 113,719
Public works 1,138,790
Health and human services 10,617
Culture and recreation 166,005
Conservation and development 237
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 1477926
Business-type activities
Steam utility $ 1,274,493
Electric distribution utility 1,435,364
Energy services utlity 9,265
Telecommunications wtility 38,465
Waler utility 578,666
Sewage treatment utility 61,462
Total depreciation expense - business-type aclivities $ 3397715

5. Interfund Receivable, Payables, and Transfers
Interfund recelvables and payables between individual funds of the City, as reported in the fund financial
statements, as of December 31, 2008 are detailed below:

" Interfund - Interfund

Receivables Payables
General fund $ 2569801 $§ 6,167,912
Debt service fund 3,229,398 -
Sewage treatment fund - 971,678
Non-major governmental funds 2,071,593 870,554
Internal service funds 783,458 644,106
Totals $ 8654250 $ 8,654,250

The city uses interfund receivables and payables to balance each fund for receipts and disbursements
recorded by the general fund on behalf of each fund. The city’s operating cash accounts are in the
general fund and all transactions effecting each fund (except the Utility Fund which is separate from the
City) is entered through the general fund cash accounts resulting in an interfund receivable or payable
depending on the transaction type.
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The Menasha Utilities portion of the City’s unfunded pension obligation totaled $966,275. The Menasha
Utilities' portion of the liabllity was retired in 2003 using available financial resources of the City and a
long-term. advance to Menasha Utilities was recorded for this amount. This amount is reported in the
Menasha Utilities Enterprise Fund as a long-term obligation due to municipality. Annual maturities of
principal and interest for the portion assigned to Menasha Utilities are as follows:

Year Ended

December 31 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 70,789 $ 33,717 $ 104,506
2010 88,487 - 31,018 119,505
2011 106,184 27,611 133,795
2012 " 176,974 22,568 199,642

2013 523,841 9,691 533,532
: 966,275 124,605 1,080,880

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Transfer to:
Non-major
General Debt Service | Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Total
Transfers from:

Non-major Government Funds $ 294,024 $ 10,640,399 $ 30,000 $ 10,964,423
Enterprise Fund

Menasha Utilities 961,038 - - 961,038

Sewage Treatment 136,100 - - 136,100
Totals 1,391,162 10,640,399 30,000 12,061,561

A transfer of $961,038 was transferred from Menasha Utilities as a payment in lieu of taxes. The
transfers of $10,640,399 were made to transfer resources for debt service payments. The remaining
transfers were made to finance various operating costs.
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6. Deferred Revenues

Governmental activities and governmental funds defer revenue recognition in connection with resources
that have been received, but not yet earmed. - Governmental funds also report deferred revenue in
connection with receivables for resources that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of
the current period. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and
unearned revenue were as follows: _

Subsequent year tax levy receivable

Major governmental funds
General fund
Debt service

Other governmental funds
Special revenue funds

Tax Incremental District No. 1
Tax Incremental District No. 2
Tax Incremental District No. 3

Recycling
Capital projects fund

Tax Incremental District No. 4
Tax Incremental District No. §
Tax Incremental District No. 6
Tax Incremental District No. 7
Tax Incremental District No. 8
Tax Incremental District No. 9
Tax Incremental District No. 10
Tax Incremental District No. 11
Posiponed special assessments and developer receivables

Major governmental funds
Debt service
Loans receivable
Other governmental funds
Capital projects fund

Tax Incremental District No. §

Special revenue funds
Housing rehab

Community development block grant
Revenues collected in advance

General fund
Other governmental funds
Marina
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| Unavailable | Unearned |

$ - $ 6,835.050
- 1 '81 9| 71 4

- 169,884
- 63,736
- 54,066
- 229,364

- 172,294
- 290,472
- 265,445
- 100,882
- 65,947
- 242,990
- 82,516
- 25,812

5 » 205.467 -

1,911,330 -

62,245 -
1,061,672 -

- 101,172

- 13,119
$ 8240714 § 10,532 463
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Postponed speclal assessments are generally collectible on annual instaliments from one to five years
while certaln others have been deferred up to ten years or until the property is sold or placed in service,
whichever is earliest.

Developer receivables represent infrastructure and other costs incurred by the City based on agreements
signed with the developer. The receivables are collectible as properties within the development are sold by
the developer.

The loans receivable of $62,245 and $1,061,672 represents various loans to local homeowners and
businesses that were originally financed from economic development grants received by the City from the
Wisconsin Departments of Commerce and Development. Repayment of principal and interest on the loan is
recorded as revenue in the economic development and housing rehabilitation loan program special revenue
funds and is used to finance additional loans.

7. Long-term Obligations
The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations of the City for the year ended
December 31, 2008:

Outstanding Outstanding { Due Within
1/1/08 tssued - Retired 12/31/08 One Year

Governmental activities:
General Obligation Debt :

Bonds $ 6485000 $ e $ 295000 $ 6,190,000 $ 325,000

Notes 16,377,702 9,995,000 2,135,406 24,237,296 2,207,296

Total General Obligation Debt 22,862,702 9,895,000 2,430,406 30,427,296 2,532,296
Debt premium 124,027 62,844 22,721 164,150 35,291
Loss on advance refunding (29,426) to- (11,771) (17,655) (11,771)
Bond anticipation notes 5,070,000 - 4,725,000 345,000 345,000
Note anticipation notes 4,345,000 _ - 4,345,000 - -
Compensated absences 1,516,035 122,280 - 1,638,315 -
Govemmental activities

Long-term obligations $ 33,888,338 $ 10,180,124 11,511,356 $ 32,557,106 2,900.816
Business-type activities:
Genaeral obligation notes $ 13,930,000 $ - $ - $ 13,930,000 $ s
General obilgation note ‘

anticipation notes 2,675,000 - - 2,675,000 -
Revenue bonds 18,932,019 2,850,614 1,285,496 20,497,137 1,433,380
Revenue bond anticipation notes 24,160,000 - - 24,160,000 24,160,000
Promissory notes 277,047 - 215,364 61,683 -
Capital leases 2,131,677 6.119 206,912 1,930,884 227,791
Business-type activities

Long-term obligations $ 62,106,743 $ 2,856,733 1,707,772 $ 63,254.704 $ 25,821,171

Total interest paid during the year on long-term debt totaled $4,709,358.

General Obligation Debt

The City has issued general obligation debt to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and capitalization deposit with CVMIC. General obligation debt has been Issued for both
govemmenlal and proprietary fund activities. General obligation debt is reported in the proprietary funds
if it is expected to be repaid from proprietary fund revenues.
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General obligation debt service requiiements are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the
City. General obligation debt outstanding on December 31, 2008 totaled $47,032,296 and was comprised
of the following issues:

Governmental Activities:

Bonds '
$780,000 issued 7/15/97; $180,000 due in 2009; interest 4.75% $ 180,000
$1,305,000 issued 12/15/01; $55,000 to $150,000 due annually through
2017; interest 4.5% to 4.875% 1,055,000
$1,390,000 issued 12/1/03; $115,000 to $165,000 due annually beginning in 2012
through 2021; interest 3.9% to 4.6% 1,380,000
$1,160,000 issued 12/15/03; $40,000 to $115,000 due annually through 2018;
interest 2.8% to 4.3% 1,000,000
$2,565,000 issued 6/15/05; $385,000 to $475,000 due annually from 2011
" through 2016; interest 4.25% to 4.65% 2,565,000
Total Bonds 6,190,0
Notes
$2,225,000 issued 9/1/01; $275,000 to $285,000 due annually through 2011;
interest 3.85% to 4.15% 835,000
$575,000 issued 12/15/01; $100,000 to $110,000 due annually through 2011;
interest 5.8% to 6% 315,000
$4,800,000 issued 5/1/02; $175,000 due annually through 2011;
interest 4.0% to 4.25% 525,000
$4,530,000 issued 3/1/03; $300,000 to $1,480,000 due annually through 2013;
interest 3.26% to 3.7% 3,930,000
$2,770,000 issued 7/1/03; $350,000 to $700,000 due annually through 2012;
interest 2.125% to 2.9% , 1,050,000
$200,000 issued 9/1/03; $200,000 due in 2012; interest 4% 200,000
$425,000 issued 6/8/04; $18,724 to $343,610 due through 2009; interest 2% 282,296
$2,490,000 issued 6/15/05; $2,480,000 due in 2014; interest 4.0% 2,490,000
$1,300,000 issued 8/12/05; $1,300,000 due in 2010; interest 3.25% 1,300,000
$2,345,000 issued 8/1/06; $125,000 to $1,685,000 due annually beginning in
2008 through 2014; interest 4.25% to 5.00% 2,210,000
$1,455,000 issued 8/1/06; $350,000 to $380,000 due annually beginning in
2008 through 2011; interest 5.75% to 5.80% 1,105,000
$4,715,000 issued 8/1/08; $150,000 to $4,000,000 due annually beginning in
2009 through 2013; interest 5.35%-6.40% 4,715,000
$5,280,000 issued 8/1/08; $100,000 to $2,300,000 due annually beginning in
2009 through 2017; interest 4.25%-4.40% 5,280,000
Total Notes 24,237,296
Total Governmental Activities Outstanding General Obligation Debt 30,427,296
Business-type Activities:
Notes
$13,930,000 issued 8/22/07; $13,930,000 due in 2010; interest 5.60% . 13,930,000
$2,675,000 issued in 2006; $2,675,000 due in 2011; interest 5.20% 2,675,000
16,605,000
Total General Oblgation Debt _$ 47032296
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Annual principal and interest maturities of the outstanding general obligation debt of $47,032,296 on
December 31, 2008 are detalled below:

Year Ended Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
December 31 | Principal | Interest | Principal Interest Principal | Interest

2009 $ 2,632,296 $ 2,209,997 $§ 0 $ 919,180 $ 2,532,286 $ 3,129,177
2010 3,375,000 2,032,529 13,930,000 919,180 17,305,000 2,951,709
2011 2,545,000 1,673,128 2,675,000 139,100 5,220,000 1,812,228
2012 3,015,000 1,676,913 - - - 3,015,000 1,676,913
2013 7,535,000 1,479,678 - - 7,535,000 1,479,678

2014-2018 10,945,000 1,806,240 - - 10,945,000 1,806,240

2019-2021 480,000 87,980 - 480,000 87,980

$30,427,296 $10.966,465 $16,605.000 $ 1,977,460 $47,032,296 $12,943 925
For governmental activities, the other long-term liabilities are generally funded by the general fund.

Legal Margin for New Debt
The City's legal margin for creation of additional general obligation debt on December 31, 2008 was
$7,380,282 as follows:

Equalized valuation of the City $1,039,202,400
Statutory limitation percentage {x) 5%
General obligation debt limitation, per Section 67.03 of the

Wisconsin Statutes 51,960,120

Total outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation $ 47,032,296
Less: Amounts available for financing general abligation debt

Debt service fund 2,452,458
Net outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation 44,579,838
Legal Margin for New Debt $ 7,380,282

Bond Anticipation Notes

The City has issued bond anticipation notes to finance construction costs associated with TID No. 5.
Bond anticipation notes do not constitute a statutorial indebtedness of the City. Accordingly, they are not
considered general obligations of the City nor a reduction in the City’s taxing authority.

Bond anticipation notes outstanding on December 31, 2008 totaled $345,000 and were comprised of the
following issues:

$3,700,000 issued 12/14/04; $345,000 due in 2009; interest 3.0% $ 345,000
Annual principal and interest maturities of the bond anticipation notes of $345,000 on December 31, 2008
follow:
Year Ended
December 31 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 345000 _$ 10695 $ 355,695
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Revenue Bonds
Revenue bond debt service requirements are financed from operations of the City's enterprise fund.
Revenue bonds outstanding on December 31, 2008 totaled $20,497,137 and were composed of the
following issues:

$1,076,097 Clean Water Fund Loan originating on 11/24/04; $991,397
was issued; $42,739 to $62,122 due annually through
2024; principal payments will increase in subsequent years as the

remaining loan balance Is drawn; interest 2.365% $ 838,977
$7.015,000 issued 12/28/05; $160,000 to $820,000 due annually 2007

through 2025; interest 3.75% to 4.2% 5,765,000
$11,416,523 issued during 2006 and 2007; $516,161 to $767,998 due annually

through 2025; interest 2.34% . 11,526,199
$168,779 issued during 2007; $7,065 to $10,971 due annually through 2026;

interest 2.475% 326,084
$2,040,876 issued in 2008;.$86,327 to $131,484 due annually through 2027;

interest 2.365% 2,040,877
Total Revenue Bonds Payable $ 20497,137

Annual principal and interest maturities of the above outstanding enterprise fund revenue bonds of
$17.617,283 on December 31, 2008 are shown below:

Year Ended

December 31 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 1433380 $ 555494 $§ 1,988,874
2010 1,475,030 511,258 1,986,288
2011 1,527,075 463,111 1,990,186
2012 1,574,524 413,256 1,987,780
2013 932,386 375,582 1,307,968

2014-2018 5,050,010 1,602,653 6,652,663

2019-2023 5,754,420 900,057 6,654,477

2024-2027 2,750,312 162,444 2,912,756

20,497,137 4,983,855 25,480,892

There are a number of compliance requirements associated with these debt issues. The Ulilities are in
compliance with those requirements.

The Utilities have pledged future water, electric and sewer customer revenues, net of specified operating
expenses, to repay the revenue bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the construction or
acquisition of capital assets used by the Utilities. The bonds are payable solely from water, electric and
sewer customer net revenues and are payable through 2027. The total principal and interest remaining to
be paid on the bonds is $25,480,992. Principal and interest paid for the current year and total customer net
revenues were $1,840,605 and $5,051,918, respectively.

Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes

$12,660,000 issued 2/1/05; $12,660,000 due in 2009; interest 4.35% $ 12,660,000
$11,500,000 issued 12/1/06; $11,500,000 due in 2009; interest 5.70% 11,500,000
Total Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes $ 24,160,000
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Annual principal and interest maturites of the above oulstanding enterprise fund revenue bond
anticipation notes of $24,160,000 on December 31, 2008 are as shown below:

Year Ended
December 31 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 24160,000 $§ 1,206210 $ 25366210

Promissory Note

Menasha Utilities has a promissory note payable to DTE Coal Services, Inc. for coal purchases. The
amount outstanding at December 31, 2008 was $61,683.

Capital L eases
The City is obligated under various leases accounted for as capital leases that were used to finance the
acquisition of capital assets. Presented below is a schedule of future minimum lease payments required

under the capital leases, and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at December 31,
2008: :

| Year Ending 1 Amount |
2009 $ 372630
2010 : 363,654
2011 : 356,633
2012 349,992
2013 349,992
2014-2016 1,049,977
Total Minimum Lease Payments 2,842,878
Less: Amount representing interest 911,994
Present Value of Fulure Minimum Lease Payments $_ 1,930,884

NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATION

1.

Retirement Commitments

All eligible City employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system. All permanent employees
expected to work over 600 hours a year (440 hours for teachers) are eligible to participate in the WRS.
Covered employees in the General category are required by statute to contribute 6.0% of their salary
(3.0% for Executives and Elected Officials, 5.1% for Protective Occupations with Social Security, and
3.4% for Protective Occupations without Social Security) to the plan. Employers may make these
contributions to the plan on behalf of employees. Employers are required to contribute an actuarially
determined amount necessary to fund the remaining projected cost of future benefits.

The payroll for City employees covered by the WRS for the year ended December 31, 2008 was
$12,580,980; the employer's lotal payroll was $11,254,583. The total required contribution for the year
ended December 31, 2008 was $1,449,770, which consisted of $758,956, or 6.0% of covered payroll
from the employer and $690,814, or 5.5% of covered payroll from employees. The required contribution
for employees for the year ended December 31, 2008 was financed by the City. Total contributions for
the years ending December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $1,376,430 and $1,325,226 respectively, equal to
the required contributions for each year. The payroli covered by the WRS for the year ended December
31, 2008 of $12,580,980 includes $1,679,661 of covered wages for the City of Menasha’s share of the
Neenah/Menasha Fire Department. The fire department employees are not employed or paid by the City
but, are part of the City's retirement plan.
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Employees who retire at or after age 65 (62 for elected officials and 54 for protective occupation
employees with less than 25 years of service, 53 for protective occupation employees with more than 25
years of service) are entitled to receive a retirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for
protective occupation employees) and receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors influencing the
benefit are: (1) final average eamings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a formula factor. Final
average earnings is the average of the employee’s three highest year's earnings. Employees terminating
covered employment and submitting application before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may
withdraw their contributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefit. For employees
beginning participation on or after January 1, 1980 and no longer actively employed on or after April 24,
1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity.
Participants employed prior to 1930 or after April 24, 1998 are immediately vested.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility and the amount of all
benefits are determined under Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statutes. The WRS issues an annual financial
report which may be obtained by writing to the Department of Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931,
Madison, Wi 53707-7931.

2. Wisconsin Public Power Incorporated Contract (WPPI)
The City's electric utility purchases its electric requirements from the Wisconsin Public Power Incorporated
(WPPI). WPPI is a municipal electric company and political subdivision of the State of Wisconsin created by
confract by its members on September 5, 1980 pursuant to the Municipal Electric Company Act,
Sec. 66.073 of the Wisconsin Statutes (the Act). WPPI's purposes include providing an adequate,
economical and reliable supply of electric energy to its members.

The City is one of 50 members of WPPI located throughout the State of Wisconsin. On December 31,
1989, each of WPPI's members, including the City of Menasha, commenced purchasing electric service
from WPPI under a new Long-term Power Supply Contract for Parlicipating Members (lhe Long-term
Contract) under which WPPI has agreed to sell and deliver to each member, and each member has agreed
{o take and pay for, the electric power and energy requirements of the members for an initial thirty-five (35)
year term. The contract was amended during 2002 to extend the term of the contract through 2037.

Under the Long-term Contract, the City and the other members of WPP| are required to pay for all power
and energy requirements supplied or made available by WPPI at rates sufficient to cover all of WPPI's
revenue requirement which includes power supply costs, administrative expenses and debt service on
outstanding bonds. WPP{'s subsequent year's rates and operating budget are approved annually by its
Board of Directors, which consists of representatives from each member municipality. The City has agreed
to charge rates to the retall rate payers of lts electric system sufficient to meet its obligation to WPPL. The
Long-term Contract provides that all payments to WPPI under the Contract constitute operating expenses of
the City’s electric system payable from any operating and maintenance fund established by the City.

The Long-term Contract may be terminated by either party upon five years prior written notice effective at
the end of the initial thirty-five year term, or at any other time thereafier, provided that no WPPI bonds are
outstanding at the time of the proposed termination and certain other contract provisions are met.

The eleétric operation purchases power through Wisconsin Public Power, Inc. for distribution to its
customers. Total purchases under this arrangement amounted 1o approximately $36.1 million in 2008.
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3. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage or destruction of assets; errors or
omissions; injuries to employees; or acts of God. The City has chosen to retain a portion of the risks
through self-insurance programs and has also purchased insurance to transfer other risks to outside parties.
Payments of premiums for these policies are recorded as expenditures or expenses in various funds of the
City. Insurance settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three years nor has
there been any significant reduction in insurance coverage compared to the prior year. A description of the
City’s risk management programs follows.

Property and Liability Insurance

During 1987, the City, together with certain other units of government within the State of Wisconsin, created
the Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC); a joint venture, to provide llability insurance
services to its members. The City is partially self-insured for liability insurance and pays premiums to
CVMIC for its excess liabllity insurance coverage. The actuary for CVMIC determines premium charges to
its members required lo pay the expecied claims and loss adjustment expenses. CVMIC's ongoing
operational expenses, other than loss adjustment expenses, are apportioned pro rata to each member.
CVMIC provides general liability, police and nurses professional liability, public official's liability and vehicle
liability coverage for the City. The City’s self-insured retention limit is $25,000 for each occurrence with a
maximum limit of $100,000 annually. Premiums paid to CVMIC for insurance coverage are recorded in a
self-insurance internal service fund. The self-insurance internal service fund charges various City
departments and operations for their portion of insurance coverage for the year.

The claims liability of $33,293 reported in the fund at December 31, 2008 is based on the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the
issuance of the basic purpose financlal statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been
incurred at the date of the basic financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. On December 31, 2008, the property and liability insurance internal service fund has available
$1,041,776 for future unreported claims. Changes in the fund's claim fiability amount for 2007 and 2008

follow:
Current
Claims and .
Liability Changes in Claim Liability
January 1 ‘Estimates Payments December 31
. 2007 $ 91,766 $ (60,854) § 12831 $ 18,081
2008 18,081 41,579 26,367 33,293
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Dental Insurance

City employees, COBRA employees, retirees and employee dependents are eligible for dental benefits from
a dental insurance internal service fund. Funding is provided by charges to City departments, employees
and retirees. Fund expenses consist of payments to a third-party administrator for dental claims and
administrative fees. The claims liability of $4,023 reported in the fund at December 31, 2008, is based on
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if
information prior to the issuance of the basic financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability
has been incurred at the date of the basic financial statements and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. On December 31, 2008, the dental insurance internal service fund has available
($6,952) for future unreported claims. Changes in the fund's claims liability amount for 2007 and 2008

follow:
Current
Claims and
Liabllity Changes in Claim Liability
Januaryq Estimates Payments December 31
2007 $ 9,443 $ 106,694 $ 109,164 §$ 6,973
2008 6,973 105,676 108,626 4,023

4, TaxIncremental Districts
The City currently maintains separate special revenue and capital project funds to account for eleven Tax
Incremental Districts (TID) created in accordance with Section 66.1105 of the Wisconsin Statutes. At the
time the Districts were created, the property tax base within each District was "frozen” and increment taxes
resulting from increases to the property tax base are used to finance District improvements, including
principal and interest on general obligation debt issued by the City to finance such improvements. All
eligible project expenditures for the Districts have been completed for the TID No. 1, TID No. 2 and TID
No. 3 projects. Therefore, special revenue funds are utilized to account for tax increment and other
revenues used o finance principal and interest payments on outstanding general obligation debt applicable
to these Districts. The Statutes allow eligible project costs to be incurred up to five years prior to the
maximum termination date. The City’s TID No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8, No. 9, No. 10 and No. 11 were
created in 1997, 1998, 1998, 2002, 2004, 2004, 2006 and 2008 respectively, and therefore are still eligible

to incur project costs. Accordingly, TIiD No. 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 are accounted for as capital projects
funds.

Since creation of the above Districts, the City has provided various financing sources to each TID and has
also recorded eligible TID project costs in other funds of the City. The foregoing amounts are not recorded
as liabilities in the TID special revenue and capital projects funds but can be recovered by the City from
future excess tax increment revenues. Detall of the amounts recoverable by the City as of December 31,
2008 from future excess tax increment revenues follows:

Net Unreimbursed Project Costs

Tax Incremental District No. 1 $ 812,746
Tax Incremental District No. 2 50,827
Tax Incremental District No. 3 404
Tax Incremental District No. 4 1,086,192
Tax Incremental District No. 5 3,690,794
Tax Incremental District No. 6 3,414,574
Tax Incremental District No. 7 1,841,437
Tax Incremental District No. 8 980,459
Tax Incremental District No. 8 4,541,472
Tax Incremental District No. 10 362,432

Tax Incremental District No. 11 30,175

$ 16,811,512
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The intent of the City Is to recover the above amounts from future TID surplus funds, if any, prior to
termination of the respective Districts. The City has amended the project plan of District No. 3 to include
transfers to Districts No. 1 and 2.

5. Major Customer
During 2008, the electric utility billed SCA Tissue $16,932,474. This represents 40% of electric utility
operating revenue. No other utility customer accounted for mare than 20% of operating revenue.

6. Property Tax Levy Limit

Wisconsin Act 25, effective July 27, 2005, imposed a limit on the property tax levies for all Wisconsin
cities, villages, towns and counties for a two-year period. Wisconsin State Budget bill SB40 continues the
limit on the property tax levies through 2009. The budget bill limits the increase in the maximum allowable
tax levy to the greater of the percentage change in the City’s January 1 equalized value as a resuit of net
new construction or 3.86% in the 2008 budget and 2.0% in the 2009 budget. The actual limit for the City
for the 2009 budget was 2.0%. The levy limit is applied to both operations and debt service. However,
the Act allows the limit to be increased for debt service authorized prior to July 1, 2005 and in certain
other situations.

7. Contingencies
a. The City contracts with Neenah-Menasha Sewerage Commission (Commission) for sewage
treatment services and is contingently liable for costs incurred by the Commission. The following item
has been identified by the Commission and the City as a potential liability not recorded on the
financial statements: :

The U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources ("WDNR")
acting on behalf of the Natural Resource Trustees have prepared Natural Resource Damage
Assessments to determine the level of such damages to the Lower Fox River and Green Bay
resulting from PCB contamination. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (‘EPA’) and the
WDNR have conducted a Feasibility Study and issued two Records of Decision (“RODs") (which
have been subsequently modified) selecting dredging and capping of PCB contaminated
sediments in the Fox River together with long-term monitoring in the Fox River and Green Bay as
remedies to eliminate, reduce, or control risks to human health and the environment associated
with the PCB contaminated sediments in the Lower Fox River and Green Bay. To date US EPA
has not formally designated the Commission as a potentially responsible party (*PRP") with
respect to the natural resource damages, past and future, remediation and oversight costs.
Appleton Paper, Inc. and NCR have commenced CERCLA contribution actions for past and
fulure remediation and oversight costs and natural resource damages against thirty-three
defendants including the Commission. The Commission has been served with the complaint, has
answered the complaint and is vigorously defending the action. Representatives of the federal
and state agencies have advised that they also have claims against the POTWs (Publicly Owned
Treatment Works) related to contamination of the Lower Fox River, including against the
‘Commission and other PRPs, and the federal and state agencies have stated that at this time the
total net present value of the past and future remediation costs including agency oversight costs,
operation and maintenance costs and natural resource damages, is $1.5 billion dollars
{collectively “Estimaled Remediation Costs’). Based on the information provided to us to date,
we are not able to provide an opinion as to the likellhood that any such claims against the
Commission would be successful or the magnitude of any liability of the Commission if such
claims were successful; however, if any such claims were successfully pursued against the
Commission, the Commission could potentially be jointly and severally liable for all Estimated
Remediation Costs. The Commission put its insurance carriers on notice.
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b.

The City’s valuation and taxing power secure a portion of the outstanding long-term debt of the
Neenah-Menasha Sewerage Commission, a joint venture created by the City and six other

municipalities. The City would be liable in the unlikely event that the Commission defaulted on the
debt. '

The City parlicipates in a number of federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Accordingly, the City’s
compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at some future date. The amount,
if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at
this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

From time to time, the City is party to other various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although
the outcome of such matters cannot be forecast with certainty, it is the opinion of management and
the City attorney that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material
adverse effect on the City's financial position or results of operations.

8. Subsequent Event
The City has identified the following subsequent events:

Payment Delinquency

With respect to its $12,660,000 Taxable Steam Utility Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes and its
$11,500,000 Taxable Steam Utility Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, the City made payment in full
of interest due on September 1, 2009, but only partial payment of principal due on such date
{$1,382,834.01). The remalning principal amount due on September 1, 2009, has not been paid.

Cessation of Steam Ultility Operations

At its meeting on September 8, 2009, the Common Council took action directing that the Steam Utility
cease its operation of the steam plant facility. Pursuant to that action, it is expected that the Steam
Utility will cease operation of the steam plant facility on or about Qctober 9, 2009.

Claims Filed

On September 18, 2009, three holders of bond anticipation notes (*Notes”) filed a class action
complaint in United States District Court-Northern District of Indiana, Case No. 4:09CV0064, against
the City, Menasha Utilities and the Menasha Steam Ulitity with respect to the Notes (the “Class Action
Complaint”). The Class Action Complaint has not been served on the City at this date.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than major capital
projects or expendable trust) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The City utilizes
special revenue funds o record financial transactions pertaining to the following activities:

Housing Rehab

To account for activity of loans made to local homeowners that were originally financed by an economic
development grant received by the City from the Wisconsin Department of Development.

Community Development Block Grant

To account for grant proceeds received by the City from the Wlsconsm Department of Administration to
be used to make loans to local homeowners.

Marina Operations

To account for collections from the City marina used to finance related disbursements for personnel,
supplies and improvements.

Tax Incremental Districts (TIDs)
To account for tax increment revenues of TID No. 1, No. 2 and No. 3 for which the construction period for
eligible projects has elapsed. All project expenditures were originally recorded in capital projects funds.

Park Development
To account for grants received and other collections to be used for the development of City parks.

Law Enforcement Grant
To account for grant proceeds received by the City.

Recycling

To account for the property taxes Ievned and intergovernmental grants received to finance the Clty's
recycling activities.

Post Employment Sick Leave Reserve

To account for the accumulalion of resources to be used to reimburse City employees for accumulated
sick leave at date of retirement.

Lead Paint Reduction
To account for grants received to be used for housing rehabilitation.

Library Endowment
To account for funds held by the City library.

Hattie Minor Scholarship
To account for funds held by the City for the purposes of providing scholarships from investment income.

Public Safety Donations
To account for donations received by the City.

Heckrodt Nature Center ,
To account for donations received by the City.



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Senior Center Memorials
To account for donations received by the City.

FEMA Grant
To account for collections and disbursements relating to the FEMA grant activity.

Senior Center Fund Raising
To account for collections and disbursements relating to activities offered by the senior center.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital project funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. The City utilizes capital projects funds to
record financial transactions pertaining to the following activities:

Capital Projects
To account for proceeds of general obligation debt used to finance capital projects.

Capital Facility
To account for the accumulation of resources to be used for building improvement projects of the City.

Capital Improvements
To account for the accumulation of resources to be used for capital improvement projects of the City.

Tax Incremental Districts (TID's)
To account for the activity of TID No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8, No. 9, No. 10, and No. 11 which are
still eligible to incur construction costs.

Roadways at River's Edge
To account for the accumutation of resources to be used for capital improvements on roadways.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to
other departments of the City, or to other governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis. The City utilizes
internal service funds to record financial fransactions pertaining to the following activities:

City Garage
To account for services provided to other City departments by the Department of Public Works.

Property and Liability Insurance

To account for funds held by the Clty. generated by chafges to other City depariments, to finance
property and liabllity claims levied against the City.

Dental Insurance
To account for funds held by the City generated by charges to other City departments, employees, and
retirees, to finance dental claims of City employees, refirees, and their dependents.



ASSETS

Cash and investments

Due from other funds

Other assets

Capital assets, nondepreciable
Land
Construction in progress

Capital assets, depreciable
Bulldings
Machinery and equipment
Less:; Accumulated depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Internal Service Funds
December 31, 2008

Property and
Liability Dental
City Garage Insurance Insurance Totals

$ 282,233 $ - 8 - $ 282,233
742,538 43,849 - 786,387

- 1,031,220 - 1,031,220

44,216 - - 44,216
132,484 - - 132,484
028,181 - - 928,181
5,474,407 - - 5,474,407
(4,199,977) - - (4,189,977)
3,404,082 1,075,069 - 4,479,151

- 33,293 4,023 37,316

644,106 - 2,929 647,035
644,106 33,293 6,952 684,351
2,379,311 - - 2,379,311
380,665 1,041,776 (6,952) 1,415,489

$ 2759976 $ 1041776 $ (6,952) $ 3,794,800
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Operatlng'Revenues
Charges for services

Operating Expenses
Operation and maintenance
Insurance payments and claims
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income
Gain on disposal of capilal assels
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets (Deficit) - January 1

Net Assets (Deficit) - December 31

Internal Service Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Property and
Liability Dental
City Garage Insurance Insurance Totals

$ 1,407694 $ 96,825 $ 108,792 $ 1,613,311

913,603 - - 913,603

- 141,765 112,935 254,700

221,734 - - 221,734

1,135,337 144,765 112,935 1,390,037

272,357 (44,940) (4,143) 223,274

6,836 - - 6,836

5,580 - - 5,580

12,416 - - 12,416

284,773 (44,940) (4,143) 235,690

2,475,203 1,086,716 (2,809) 3,559,110
2,759,976 1,041,776 6,052 3,794,800




CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Property and
Liability Dental
City Garage | Insurance Insurance Totals
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers - $ 1407694 § 96,825 $ 108,792 $ 1,613,311
Cash paid to suppliers (549,033) (126,553) (115,885) (791.471)
Cash pald {o employees (364,570) - - (364,570)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Aclivities 494,091 (29,728) (7,093) 457,270
Cash Flows from Noncapital and Related Financing Activities
Change in interfund receivable and payables (196,864) 29,728 7,093 (160,043)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Aclivilies
Acquisition of capital assets (307,438) - - (307,438)
Proceeds from sale of capital asset 5,580 - - 5,580
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing
Activities (301,858) - - (301,858)
Cash Flows from Investing Activiies
Interest received 11,468 - - 11,468
Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,837 - - 6,837
Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1 275,396 - - 275,396
Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31 $ 282,233 ¢ - $ - $ 282233
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating loss $ 272,357 § (44,940) § (4.143) $ 223,274
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation - 221,734 - - 221,734
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts payable - 15,212 (2,950) 12,262
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Aclivities 494,091 29,728 7,093 457,270
Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Aclivities
None S - 8 - $ - $ -
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ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
FOR BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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REPORT-ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANGE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Members: of the City Council
City of Menasha, Wisconsin

We have audited the financial statements: of the governmenlal activities, the business-type activilies, each major
fund, and the aggregate rémaining fiind information of the City of Ménasha; Wisconsin, as of and for the yéarendeéd.
December 31, 2008; which collectively comprise the City of Menasha, Wisconsin's basic financlal statements.and
have issued Sur ripor-theréon dated September 30,2008, -We:canducted:our audil in-accordance with-auditing
standards-génerally adcepled in the United States of America and the standards: applicable-to financial- audits
contained in Goversment Audiling Standards, issued by the. Compiroller General of the United States:

effectiveness of thie: Cnty cf Manasha, Wisccmsi’n '8 iniemal cantrcﬂ overfi nanial reporlmg

Our consideration of internal® conlrol. 6vér financial reporling was for the limited. purpose. described in the
preceding’ paragraph and would nel necesserily identify-all deficienicies or material weaknesses. However, as

discussed: below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal controf over-financial reporting that we consider to
be sigmfcant deficiencies.

A tontrol- defciency exists when the design of operation ofa contiol does net aﬂnwmanagement*
the e e rforming their assigned functions, to prevent or. deteet misstaten fi

or employées, in
p B 1 2
cy i & control defi ciency, or cotibination of: control: deficiencies; that. adversel;

signlﬂtanl defiti
entity's ability t&:
dccepted accounting: princ;ples such that there is.more than remote likelihood that'a misstalemant of the ehtity’s
financial statements that is more than inGonsequéntial will not be: prevanted. or detected by the entity’s:internial
‘control aver financial reporting. We. consider the deficienciés described-as 2008-01 and 2008-02 in'the schedule
of finditigs and resparises to besignificant deficiencies in internal control over fiiancial reporting.

A material weakness is a significant déficiency, or combination:of significant deficiencies, that results in mote than
a remate likelihood that a material misstalement of the finaricial statements' will not be prevented or détected by
the entity’s ‘intemal control. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporling was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would nol necessamy identify all deficiencies in the
internal control that might ‘be significant deficiencies ‘and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
significant deficiencies thal‘are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe that-none.of the

Significant  deficiencies: described In the accompanyifg schedule -of findings ‘and respanses 15 a malerial
weakness.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Menasha, Wisconsin's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of ils compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of basic financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of

our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
_ Government Auditing Standards.

The City of Menasha, Wisconsin's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the schedule of
findings and responses. We did not audit the City of Menasha, Wisconsin's response and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor and members of the City
Council, federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

ohoned S

Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
September 30, 2009
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FEDERAL AWARDS AND
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE PROGRAM, INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
‘OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT GUIDELINES, AND THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

To:the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Couricil
City of Menasha;, Wisconsin

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of City ‘of Menasha, Wisconsin with' the' types of compliance. requirements
described in the U.S, Office of Managerment and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Cor Supplement and the
State Single Audit Guidelines issuéd by the Wisconsin Department of Administration tha e applicable fo-each of
its major federal and state programs for the: year ended December 31; 2008. City.of Menasha, Wisconsin's major
federal and slate programs: dre identified’ in the summary of auditors results -section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and.questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements-of laws; regulatrons contracts, dnd
grarits: applicable: 1o -gach of ils major federal and state programs is. the: responsibility ‘of Cily of Menasha,

Wisconsin's management. Our. responsibility 5 t6 express an cpimnn an City of Menasha, Wisconsin's
:compliance based onotr audit.

We conducted our audit-of campliance in-accordarice with aud:ting slandards generally ac_cepted inthe
States: of America; the standards applicable o finan ] S
issued by the Gomplroller ‘General of the: United States; -goal
Governments, and. Non-Profit: Organizations ‘and. the late S:ngle Aud:t Guldetmes issued. by the Wnsconsm
Departnient of Administration. Those standards, OMB Ciréular A-133 raquire that: we plan and perform the audit
10 obitain reasonsble assurance aboit whether noncompliance with the types of compliaince requirements réferred
1o above that could have a'direct and. material effect on a major federal ‘and. state. program occurred: An-audit-
includes ‘examining, ‘on a' test basis, evidenice about: City- of Mendsha, ‘Wisconsin's - compliance with those
requirements. and . performing 'such other procedures as we cansidered necessary in the ‘circumistances. We-
believe {hat our audit provides a seasonablé basis for our opinion. Our @udit -does. riot provide a legal
deterinination of City of Menasha, Wisconsin's canipliance with those requirements.

In-our ‘opinion; ‘Cily of Menasha, Wisconsin complied, :in all-malerial tespects, with the requirements referred (o
‘atiove that are apphcabte to-each of s major fedéral and state: programs for the year ended December 31, 2008.

intarnal Control Over Compliance

The management of City of Menasha, Wisconsin is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
contre} aver compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to fedéral and
state programs. in planning and performing our audit; we considered City of Ménasha, Wisconsin’s. internal
cantrol over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct-and maiterial effect ona major federal and.
state prograrn-in order to delermine our auditing procediires for the purpose of expressing our opition on
compliance; but nol. fér thé purpose of expressing an opinion on the effeclivensss ‘of internal éontrol over

compliance. Accordingly, we:do-nol express an opmmn on-the effectiveness of the Cily of Menasha; Wisconsin's
interrial control over cemphance
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A conlrol deficiency In an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state program on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency is a conlrol deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
entity's ability to administer a federal and state program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City of Menasha, Wisconsin’s internal control. We
consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as item 2008-03 to be a significant deficiency.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that resuits in more than
a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state
program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. We believe that none of the significant
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs is a material weakness.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the entity’s internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor and members of the City
Council, federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. ’

Sleneh Sc
Certified Public Accountants

Green Bay, Wisconsin
September 30, 2009
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

(Accrued) Accrued
o Federal Deferred Cash (Deferred)
Grantor Agency/Pass-through Agency/ CFDA Revenue Received Revenue Total Total
Grant Titls, Award or Project Number Number 1/1/08 (Refunded) | 12/31/08 Revenues | Expenditures
FEDERAL PROGRAMS
u ENT O G EVE
Passed through Wisconsin Department
of Commerce
Community Development Block Grant 14228 $ - $ 115500 $ - § 115500 $ 115500
Passed through Wisconsin Department
of Administration
Lead Hazard Control Grant Program 14.900 (10,056) - 15,858 5,802 5,802
Total U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development {10,056) 115,500 15,858 121,302 121,302
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Passad through the Wisconsin Department
of Justice _
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 (5,505) 37,378 - 31,873 31,873
Passed through the Wisconsin Office
of Justice Assistance .
Livescan Implementation 16.554 - 13,600 - 13,600 13,600
Total U.S. Department of Justice (5,505) 50,978 - 45,473 45473
u (o] SPO|
Passed through Wisconsin Departmant
of Transportation
Highway Safety 20.600 - 4,000 - 4,000 4,000
us ONME OTECTION AGENC
Passad through Wisconsin Department of
Administration
Environmental improvement Fund 66.468 - 760,719 - 760,719 760,719
U.S, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
Passed through Wisconsin Department of
Health and Family Services
"~ BIOT Focus A Planning 93.069 - 26,258 - 26,258 26,258
Immunization Grants 93.268 - 8,233 - 8,233 8,233
CDC Investigations and Technical Assis. 93.283 - 9,247 - 9,247 9,247
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 - 805 - 805 805
Preventive Health & Health Services BG 93.991 - 5,019 - 5,019 5019
Maternal & Child Health Services Grant 93.994 - 11,035 - 11,035 11,035
Passed through Winnebago County
Special Programs for the Aging - Title #IB 93.044 - 48,592 - 48,592 48,592
Passed through Fox Valley Public Health Consortium
CDC Biotemrorism 93.996 - 7,480 - 7,480 7,480
Total U.S. Depariment of Health & Human Services - 116,669 - 116,669 116,669
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 5,56 866 15,858 048,163 1,048,163

The notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and the schedule of state financial

assistance are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Schedule of State Financial Assistance
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

: {Accrued) Accrued
State Deferred Cash (Deferred)

Grantor Agency/Pass-through Agency/ 1.D. Revenue Recaived Revenue Total Total

Grant Title, Award or Project Number Number 1/1/08 {Refundad) 12/31/08 Revenues | Expenditures
OF HEALTH SERVICES

Childhood Lead 435.157720 $ - $ 3057 § - $ 3057 $ 3,057
Matemal Child Health 435.159320 - 804 - 804 804
Total Department of Health Services - 3,861 - 3,861 3,861
TOTAL STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE $ - $ 3861 8 - $ 3861 §$ 3,861

The notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and the schedule of state financial
assistance are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN .
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the Schedule of State Financial Assistance
December 31, 2008

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Fedéral Awards and the Schedule of State Financial
Assistance for the City is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations” and the "State Single Audit Guidelines” issued by
the Wisconsin Department of Administration.

NOTE B - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures in the schedule are presented in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting and
are generally in agreement with expenditures reported in the City’s 2008 basic financial statements.

The programs included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are separated into major and non-
major categories. Additional information on each category is presented below:

The City qualifies as a low risk auditee in accordance with paragraph 530 of OMB Circular A-133.
Therefore major programs, as identified in Section | of the Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs, represent those with combined expenditures exceeding 25% of total federal awards that
also were deemed major programs based on the auditors’ risk assessment. The City's other
federal programs were considered non-major programs for 2008.

NOTE C - OVERSIGHT AGENCY

The federal oversight agency for the City is the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The state oversight
agency is the Wisconsin Department of Health Services.



CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
December 31, 2008

Section 1 - Summary of Auditors’ Results
Basic Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? No

o Significant deficiency(ies) identified that is not

considered to be a material weakness? Yes
Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted? No
Federal and State Awards Programs

Internal control over major program:

s Material weakness(es) identified No

+ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered

to be material weakness(es)? Yes

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133? Yes
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with State Single Audit Guidelines? Yes
Identification of major federal program: :

| CFDA Number | Name of Federal Program |
66.468 Environmental Improvement Fund
|dentification of major state programs:
| CFDA Number ] Name of State Program |
435.157720 Childhood Lead

Audit threshold used to determine between Type A and Type B programs:

Federal $300,000

State $100,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee Yes
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued).
December 31, 2008

Section li - Financial Statement Findings

Finding No. ~ Contro! Deficlencies
2008-01 Year End Closing and Financial Reporting

Condition: While the current staff of the City maintains financial records which accurately report revenues
and expenditures throughout the year, preparing year end adjusting, closing and GASB 34
conversion entries necessary to prepare financial statements, including related notes, require
additional expertise that would entail additional training and staff ime to develop. The City
contracts with Schenck and their knowledge of current accounting principles to prepare required
joumnal entries and financial reports for the City in an efficlent manner.

Criteria: The revnew of financial statements by staff with expertise in financial reporting is an internal

control intended to prevent, detect and comrect a potential misstatement in the financial
statements or notes. '

Cause: The additional costs associated with hiring staff experienced in preparing year end adjusting,

closing, and GASB 34 conversion entrles and financial reports, including additional training time
outweigh the derived benefits.

Recommendation: We recommend the City continue reviewing the adjusting, closing and GASB 34 conversion
entries along with the financial reports prepared by Schenck. While it may not be cost
beneficial to hire additional staff to prepare these items, a thorough review of this information by

appropriate staff of the City is necessary to obtain an adequate understanding of the City’s
financial report.

2008-02 Assistance with Capital Assets Records

Condition: The City’s accounting personnel provides us with the current year asset additions and
disposals, the method and rate of depreciation and the salvage value of the assets. From
this information, we assist the City in recording the capital asset additions and disposals
and calculating the annual depreciation.

Criteria: The maintenance of detailed capital assets records is an internal control intended to
safeguard assets and to prevent a potential misstatement in the financial records.

Cause: Our audit engagement includes calculating depreciation and assisting the City in
maintaining its capital asset records as the City does not employ staff with the expertise or

experience to maintain these records in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. _

Recommendation: We recommend the accounting personnel and the City Council continue to review the
capital assets records of the City. We believe the costs of employmg staff with the
‘relevant expertise would outweigh the benefits to be received.
Compliance and Other Matters

There are no findings related to compliance and other matters that are required to be reported under

governmental auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America for the year ended
December 31, 2008.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
December 31, 2008

Section lll - Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding No.

Internal Control Deficiency

2008-03

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Recommendation:

Financlal Reporting for Federal and State Financlal Assistance

OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Guidelines requires the City to prepare
appropriate financial statements including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
state financial assistance. While the cumrent staff of the City maintain financial records
supporting amounts reported In the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance, the City contracts with Schenck to compile the data from these records and
prepare the single audit report for the City.

Having staff with expertise in federal and state financial reporting prepare the City’s single audit
report is an intemal control intended to prevent, detect and comect a potential misstatement in
the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assislance, or
accompanying notes to the schedule.

The additional costs associated with hiring staff sufficiently experienced to prepare the City’s
single audit report, including the additional training time, outweigh the derived benefits.

We recommend City personnel continue reviewing the City’s single audit report prepared by
Schenck. While it may not be cost beneficial to hire additional staff to prepare these items, a
thorough review of this information by appropriate staff of the City is necessary to ensure all
federal and state financial assistance programs are properly reported in the City’s single audit
report.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings and Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Prior Year Audit Findings

The findings notes in the 2007 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs have been reported to the proper
federal and state agencies. Management continues to believe the cost to hire additional staff to eliminate the
control deficiencies identified as 2007-01 and 2007-02 outweigh the benefits to be received. Management
reviews the financial report and the single audit report prepared by Schenck.

Corrective Action Plan

Finding No. Corrective Action Plan

2008-01 Year End Closing and Financial Reporting
Management believes that the cost of hiring additional staff to prépare year end adjusting
and closing entries and to prepare financial reports outweighs the benefits to be received.

2008-02 Assistance with Capital Assets Records
Management believes the cost for additional staff ime to maintain the capital asset records
outweigh the benelfits to be received.

20008-3 Financial Reporting for Federal and State Financial Assistance

Management believes the cost of additional staff time and training to prepare these items
outweigh the benefits to be received.
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